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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to you the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30
June 2016 (the “year under review").

Business Review

Being associated with the film industry for more than 30 years, | have
witnessed its remarkable evolution over the years and am especially
impressed with the robust growth we have seen in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") where in recent years the industry has entered into a
golden era of rapid development, continuously breaking records in terms of
box office receipts as well as new cinemas and admissions. According to
the State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film and Television (]
RFEHREEL/D) (“SAPPRFT"), total national box office receipts in the
first half of 2016 had soared 20% to Renminbi (“RMB") 24.6 billion from
the corresponding period in 2015. The number of cinemas had exceeded
6,000 for the first time and over 723 million cinemas admissions were
recorded. Against this backdrop, the Group has pushed forward with its
business plans and achieved promising operating results of our film
production.
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To fulfill the increasing demand for quality films, our large-scale action
blockbuster “Ip Man 3" (4 3), starring Donnie Yen (1)) and boxing
legend Mike Tyson (ZE£Z=E ), was released during the year under review.
This picture became a great hit with exceptional financial results. Its box
office receipts not only surpassed the releases of previous “lIp Man” film
series, but also achieved a record box office receipts among all local films
showed during the same period in Hong Kong. The huge box office success
and enthusiastic demand of “Ip Man 3" (¥4 3) worldwide has dramatically
driven the Group's revenue to achieve a turnaround segment profit of Hong
Kong Dollar (“HK$") 58.9 million this year, compared with HK$32.9 million
loss in last year. | am also pleased that our other general-scale film “Wong Ka
Yan” (£ K fik) has received widespread acclaim for its unconventional
narrative resolutions and heartwarming humanity are all based on a
deceptively simple story.

In terms of our film exhibition operations, the flagship cinema complex of
the Group, Cinema City Langham Place which is situated in a prime location
of Mongkok, has maintained its top number one ranking in terms of box
office receipts among all cinemas in Hong Kong over the year under review
and up to now. As the only cinema in Hong Kong equipped with “4Dx”
exclusive viewing technology, which provides an advanced, sophisticated
viewing experience for audiences, we are confident that this cinema will
maintain its leading position and generate stable and on-going revenue to
the Group. With the first full financial year operation of Cinema City
Langham Place, film exhibition segment reduced loss to HK$12.9 million
during the year under review, compared to HK$37.9 million loss for the
corresponding period last year.

With the outstanding performance of the film production business and the
further improvement of the film exhibition business, the loss attributable to
owners of the Company has greatly reduced from HK$215.3 million last
year to HK$72.6 million this year, proving the success of our parallel
development approach.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEmE

Since the signing of the Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (CEPA) in 2003, de-regulation within the film
industry has greatly facilitated cross-border industry cooperation. The
number of the PRC-Hong Kong co-productions and investment projects has
constantly increased in recent years, thereby encouraging the development
and growth of the film industry in both regions. To further strengthen our
capabilities and expand our share in this lucrative market, the Group
entered into a 3-year memorandum of strategic cooperation framework (the
“MOC”) with Z % 52 2 (X )E ) B R 2 7 (in English, for identification
purpose only, Huace Pictures (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.) (“Huace Pictures”) in June
2016. Huace Pictures is a subsidiary of WIITZE R KR B H EBR 2 7 (in
English, for identification purpose only, Zhejiang Huace Film & TV Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), and currently has the
most comprehensive industry deployment among all entertainment
enterprises in the PRC, covering investment and production, cinemas, new
media, advertising, artist management, internet games, and shooting base
construction. This strategic alliance will enable the Group to leverage the
industry experience and resources of Huace Pictures to further penetrate
the PRC market.

In a dedicated effort to expand its business, the Company acquired a group
of companies in 2015 which was principally engaged in film advertising and
marketing business as well as printed and digital media publication
business. The film advertising and marketing business had not only
contributed positive results to the Group but also allowed the Group to
enjoy cost effectiveness and sophisticated advertising and promotion
strategies during the year under review. For the printed and digital media
publication business, we had published a monthly lifestyle magazine,
namely “Platinum of UnionPay” (#£5H <) that featured a wide range of
updated news on luxurious lifestyle related products and services during the
year under review. However, due to the unsatisfactory results which was
attributable to the slowdown of the growth of the PRC's economy, in
August 2016, following the end of the reporting period, the Group ceased
the publication of this magazine. Given the uncertainty of the publication
business, such decision and the subsequent write off, for prudence sake,
had affected the Group’s overall performance. However, the Board still
believes that it was a prudent move to alleviate the short term financial
burden of the Group, and thereby allowing the Group to allocate more
resources on the development of the Group's existing business of film
production and distribution.
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Results for the Year and Dividend

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group reported total revenue of
approximately HK$446.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
187.5% over the corresponding period last year. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$72.6 million for the year ended 30 June
2016, compared with the corresponding period last year of HK$215.3
million loss, the loss was decreased by approximately HK$142.7 million
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue as a result of the promising
results of “lp Man 3" (¥f83) and the first full financial year operation of
Cinema City Langham Place and the reduction in impairment losses on
goodwill recognised during the year under review.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2016.

Prospects

Looking ahead, we will continue to carefully develop our business model
and core competencies based on the firm foundation we have built so far.
Concomitant with the strong industry growth we have witnessed, audience
demand for quality films has also become a rising trend. To this end, we
will work hard to produce more varied and higher quality films to meet this
demand. At the same time, we will continue in developing our film
exhibition operations by building more cinemas in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Appreciation
In closing, | would like to express deep appreciation to my fellow Board
members and our staff for their spirited dedication and hard work. On

behalf of the Board, | would also like to thank our shareholders for their
ongoing support and trust in our vision and development.

Wong Pak Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB AT

Business Review ¥ &bk

The Group is principally engaged in (i) film and television (“TV") series AEEFEHENEEZLER (SR ) BIEE - 31T
production, distribution and licensing of film rights, (ii) film exhibition, (i)  FEEAEFEFE] -+ (i) BHER - (i) BHEIERE - B (v)E
post-production, and (iv) advertising, marketing and publication. The Group 4 - MIBHER ERER - EREBELTE ARNEER
produces films and TV series in the Chinese language with Hong Kong and &M MIAEENR BHEEEY R EREIRE - A&

the PRC as its major markets. The Group also operates both a cinema anda BN EB KL E b LB HR/EQT] -
post-production house in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Film and TV series production and distribution

During the year under review, the Group's film and TV series production and
distribution business reported revenue of approximately HK$300.2 million
compared to HK$80.2 million for the corresponding period last year,
representing a year-on-year rise of approximately 274.5%. This was mainly
attributable to the considerable revenue derived from the large-scale action
film produced by the Group that was released during the year under review,
entitled “lp Man 3" (£ 3). The film was released in late December 2015,
and achieved impressive box office receipts of approximately HK$60.4 million
in Hong Kong. It also ranked top among all local films shown during the
period it was released. For markets outside Hong Kong, according to data
provided by the Group’s respective film distributors, the film also achieved
aggregate box office receipts of approximately HK$1.1 billion. “Ip Man 3" (¥
i 3) had successfully grossed approximately HK$1.2 billion in total box office
receipts worldwide. Given that the income of the film has yet to be fully
reflected during the year under review, the Group believes that it will still be
making a certain extent contributions to revenue to be received through the
sharing of worldwide box office receipts in the next financial year.

Apart from “Ip Man 3" (ZF4 3), “Wong Ka Yan” (EZfX) was released in
October 2015, generating revenue of approximately HK$7.4 million for the
Group, while “Bounty Hunters” (E% % A), a large-scale adventure action
film produced by a joint venture formed between the Group and production
companies from Korea and the PRC, starring Lee Min Ho (Z & %) and
Wallace Chung (§% /% R ) which expected to be released during the year
under review was slightly delayed and released in July 2016. In addition, “S
Storm” (S/E. %), a general-scale action film and a sequel to the Group’s
previously released film entitled “Z Storm” (Z[@ %), starring Louis Koo (&
K4%) and Julian Cheung (SR #*) was also released in September 2016, “S
Storm” (S/E ) is still showing in cinemas in Hong Kong and the PRC as at
the date of this report. The contributions from these films will be realised in
the Group's interim results for the six months ending 31 December 2016.

Currently, the Group has a number of films and TV series in the production
pipeline which are mainly scheduled to be completed and released
subsequent to the year under review. These include: “Made in Kowloon”
(JLEENBR), a large-scale action film, starring Louis Koo (& X%£) and Max
Zhang (35 %) and directed by Fruit Chan (PFR), who is the director of an
award winning film “The Midnight After” (BB E& @ B T ARG
K ¥ ) AT VAN); “Seven Weapons” (+ T& & 28 2 fL 2 ), a large-scale
action film which adapted from an original famous martial arts novel
written by “Gu Long” (& #E); and “Dream Has Become A Reality” (1% 2
E R, a general-scale drama film produced by Teddy Robin (FFEES).
Among these releases, “Dream Has Become A Reality” (122 Z &R %)
is the first ever film project obtained a grant from the Hong Kong
Government under the Film Production Grant Scheme (the “FPGS”) of the
Film Development Fund to encourage local film production. Granting of this
fund has not only lowered the overall production cost but also serves to
recognise the underlying creativity and originality of the film.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE S W L AT

The Group has also invested in an international blockbuster movie entitled
(tentative name) to be produced for worldwide theatrical
distribution. “Inversion”

“Inversion”
is a science fiction movie about a streetwise American
con man and a Chinese physicist who race against the clock to save the Earth
from losing its gravity. Travis Fimmel, who stars in a movie released called
“Warcraft” (JEERF 5 BUEUEAE) as well as the TV series “Vikings” is part of
the main cast. The production team includes Peter Segal, an eight-time Emmy
Award winner as film director, and double Oscar Award winner Paul Haggis for
(best original screenplay and best motion picture) together with Bragi Schut
and David Arata as screenplay writers. The executive producers comprise the
team from “The Revenant” (1€ { B &), Markus Barmettler and Philip Lee,
alongside Michael Nozik and Michael Ewing. The pre-production of “Inversion”
is underway with filming and worldwide theatrical distribution tentatively
scheduled to take place in late 2016 and the second half of 2017 respectively.
Based on its outstanding pre-sale performance track record and the energetic
production team, the Group expects the movie to receive a positive market
response when it's released, significantly helping to catalyse income growth

over the next few years.

10 Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015/16

$'§lJ’Tﬁ&ﬁ—ﬁﬁﬂﬂH%E%H@?ﬁﬁm?éﬁﬁ’]IB’XK
B [Inversion] (B E%) ° [Inversion] ARIZEF - E
Ml — N EEEER TR R ﬁﬁ?ﬁ(iﬁﬁ’ﬁakii
%\ﬁﬁ'ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁ B ) E IR 2 RA M E o E ATravis
Fimmel RE& [EBEAFEH - BIEEL I EA - TRE
RE#HREF]INHFEEE - BUFERTEETEE
JURN F 8815 = Peter Segal ~ MR BET-REERI(ERAIE
R K& £ % A 18 = Paul Haggis & #3 Bl Bragi Schut &
David Arata° 5 BFE[ENEE | W ITEHAB
Markus Barmettler & Philip Lee ## [&] Michael Nozik &
Michael Ewing ° [Inversion] &) BT HI RIEIE R AT H -
BRDRETER 2016 FRMAMBMBR 2017F T HF 2
REFRET - BEBANEEREPHNREKE R
FomAlERRES  AEBTENEY LMREGRER
TS RE - RAHHEB R KRB FHRAL R -




Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year under review, the Group continued to identify quality
investment opportunities in film and TV series projects worldwide to diversify
the Group's revenue base. On 13 June 2016, the Group entered into the
MOC with Huace Pictures with an aim of diversifying business operations.
Based on the MOC, the two parties will co-operate in the areas of contents,
project investment, artist management, derivative products development,
plus network platforms and market expansion by integrating each other’s
film and TV resources. “S Storm” (S/E.) is a cooperative venture between
the Group and Huace Pictures in which the Group served as producer and
Huace Pictures acted as the film’s distributor across the PRC.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 9 October 2012 (the
“Prospectus”) and the reports published in previous financial years, various
factors such as number of films distributed by the Group, the scale,
schedule of film release and the result of a film could have significant
impact on the Group's results. Taking all these factors into consideration,
the Group's interim financial results may not be indicative of the Group's
financial results of a full year and the Group's financial performance would
fluctuate from period to period.

Film exhibition

The remarkable box office performance of the Group’s flagship cinema
complex — Cinema City Langham Place was another key revenue driver for
the Group. As of the date of this report, the cinema had taken in over
HK$187.7 million in box office receipts since its commencement of
operations in late November 2014 of which HK$122.7 million was
contributed during the year under review. According to the statistics from
Hong Kong Box Office Limited, the cinema was ranked top among all
cinemas in Hong Kong for 19 consecutive months since February 2015 so
far. During the year under review, the film exhibition business contributed
revenue of HK$137.5 million for the Group, accounting for approximately
30.8% of total revenues during the year under review.

As for the Group’s second cinema located in “Vivo City” (1823#), a new
large-scale retail complex in the Central Business District (CBD) of southwest
Shanghai, construction work has been completed and interior design and
renovation work began in September 2016. Full operations are expected to
begin by the end of 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER DT

With the steady growth of the box office receipts and the rising number of
admissions in Hong Kong and the PRC, the Group is optimistic about
prospects for the film exhibition business and will continue to explore all
viable opportunities for business expansion.

Post-production

Post-production plays an important role for the Group in the overall
integrated film production process. In spite of a loss of HK$3.8 million
recorded during the year under review, the Group will maintain its small-
scale development to provide post-production services to external customers
which helps strengthen the Group’s overall profitability, and more
importantly, benefits the Group’s film production business in terms of
efficiency and cost control.

Advertising, marketing and publication

During the last financial year, the Group completed its acquisition of a film
advertising and marketing business together with a print and digital media
publication business. Since the completion of the acquisition, the film
advertising and marketing business had not only contributed positive results
to the Group but also allowed the Group to benefit from the sophisticated
advertising and promotion strategies as well as cost reduction during the
year under review.

The Group published its first monthly luxury lifestyle magazine called
“Platinum of UnionPay” (#& Bt B € ) which featured a wide range of the
updated news on luxurious lifestyle related products and services in July
2015. This magazine was provided on a complementary basis. As such,
revenue was primarily derived from printed media and digital media
advertisements placed by local or international luxury brands in this
magazine. When the Company expanded its business to include the
publication and distribution of this magazine, the Group believed that the
combined digital and print readership base could secure advertising
revenue. However, the results of this magazine did not perform as
expected. The Group believes that such unsatisfactory performance was
mainly due to the slowdown of the growth of the PRC's economy, the
PRC’s stock market turbulence and the PRC's crackdown on corruption and
conspicuous spending, as a result of which those luxury brands were
spending less on advertising their products and services. Coupled with the
current overall decline within the publication industry amidst today’s digital
era, running a print magazine is extremely challenging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In view of such unsatisfactory performance of this magazine, the Group had
ceased the publication of this magazine in August 2016 in order to save cost.
Meanwhile, the Group had commenced reviewing the overall structure and
strategies of its print and digital media publication business, such as using the
Group'’s publication platform for promotion events and joint film marketing
campaigns and thereby creating a synergy effect from the Group’s publication
business and film production, distribution, advertising and marketing business. The
Group believes that the reorientation of the print and digital media publication
business will help to further strengthen the Group’s core business development,
which forms an important part of the Group's film production value chain.

As a result of the uncertainty of the publication business, and for prudence sake,
the relevant assets in relation to the publication of this magazine including
goodwill and intangible assets with carrying amounts of approximately HK$43.1
million and HK$20.5 million respectively have to be impaired during the year
under review which were non-cash items and will not have any negative impact
on the cash flow of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER DT

Outlook

Despite recent statistics that have shown a slowdown in the growth pace
for the PRC film industry, the PRC is still the world’s second largest film
market in terms of total box office receipts. In addition, the PRC
Government has been actively introducing policies and measures including
its revised “Film Industry Development Funds Collection and Manage
(ARBEXLEXRRFIEESHBMEAEERE) to
encourage film production by sponsors and funds, and some policies in
different provinces in the PRC, such as the “Notice on Several Opinions of
Supporting the Development of Chongging Movie” (BARRITEEEH/ 3
EEETER) and “Notice of Several Policies on Promoting Shanghai
Film Development” (BRI HEEFIHEMNE TEE) to support and
guide the industry. Seven departments including the Ministry of Finance (8
2 EB), National Development and Reform Committee (R RERENEZ B
&), People’s bank of China (B ARIE1T), State Administration of
Taxation (EIRFi# 4 B), SAPPRFT jointly announced the “Notice of
Economic Policies Supporting the Development of the Film Industry” {Egm
SHEFHRETBBEKMBA) |, which provides support in the areas
of taxation, financing, and land use with full consideration along the movie
production chain, to promote the film industry as well as open up the
market to attract foreign film producers and investors. It is expected that
the upward trend will continue apace; the PRC could possibly overtake the
United States of America and be the biggest movie market in few years.

Approach”

At the same time, the Hong Kong Government has also been very supportive in
fostering the development of the local film industry. In November 2015, “Create
Hong Kong" (81Z%7) launched the FPGS under the Film Development Fund
to support and subsidise small-budget film productions, providing a grant up to
HK$2.0 million per film project with the aim of sparking local filmmakers’
creativity to come up with quality film projects and boost the volume of local film
productions as a whole. It was the Group'’s pleasure that “Dream Has Become A
Reality” (22 ZRREL) is the first local film project successfully obtained the
grant from the FPGS since its launch.

With all the favourable policies from the PRC and the Hong Kong
Government aimed at the film sector, the Group is optimistic about the
industry’s future. To capture potential growth opportunities, the Group has
formulated various strategies and is dedicated transforming plans into
reality. In the film production segment, the Group will maintain a
production plan of producing approximately three films projects each year,
among which, at least one will be a small budget local movie, with the
purpose of training and nurturing new film talents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As for the Group's film exhibition business, riding on the successful
operation model of Cinema City Langham Place, the Group will keep
exploring potential location to expand its film exhibition business in Hong
Kong and the PRC to capture opportunities as a result of continued growth
momentum there. The Group's second cinema located at “Vivo City” (162
) in Shanghai is now under internal renovation works and is expected to
begin operations in late 2016, before the traditional peak season of 2017

Chinese New Year.

Going forward, the Group will continue to focus on producing quality
movies and vigorously optimise its business structure while developing new
business models with a solid foundation under all its core operations in
order to build an integrated entertainment platform, as well as capture the
potential of today’s booming movie and entertainment industry.

Financial Review
Revenue and Gross profit

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$446.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$291.1 million or 187.5% compared to the previous financial year,
mainly contributed by revenue from the business segments of film and TV
series production and distribution and film exhibition of approximately
HK$300.2 million and HK$137.5 million, respectively. Despite the Group
released two films during the year under review which compared to three
films in the previous financial year, the significant increase in revenue of
film and TV series production and distribution was mainly due to the
impressive revenue derived from the large-scale action film produced by the
Group, namely “Ip Man 3" (Zf& 3), released during the year under review
whilst the overall scale of the films released in the previous financial year
were comparatively smaller than the films released during the year under
review. Moreover, the revenue from film exhibition business was
contributed the Group in a full financial year during the year under review
since its commencement of operations in late November 2014.

Gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$186.8 million representing
an increase of approximately HK$140.0 million or approximately 299.0%
compared to the previous financial year. Gross profit margin for the year
under review was approximately 41.9%, which showed a significant
increase from that of approximately 30.2% for the previous financial year.
This was mainly attributable to the significant increase of the gross profit
margin of the film and TV series production and distribution segment from
9.1% for the previous financial year to 36.8% for the year under review.
This was mainly driven by the increase of revenue contributed by film and
TV series production and distribution as aforesaid. In addition, the gross
profit margin for film exhibition segment was slightly increased from 52.8%
for the previous financial year to 54.3% for the year under review.

ERER B RO

BYMBREGEAE - AEE KRB Cinema CityBAs iy
RIS RN - BEDEBEHEUAREREE
MABEMESMERER  F&SHHhFEEREE
HRAEE - REBEMK EFRENME-_RFhB
BIIEE#EITNEIIE T2 - TRAIR 2016 F R R 2017 6
EEEHEERRZE -

REAR  AEEREEZTINREREERZ AN
BILEEBER REEEZOEBRENE TR
T FREMEBRN  EURARETE  IEEEAE
P EFRETRNBRERE -

/g CI]
Wz K ER

HE2016F6 A30RIEFE  AEBEMBROAEE
446 4B BT B E—UMBFEEEMABE 21188
L8 187.5% FTBABYRERBIEIERBETURE
THMEBSHERMONED IAEE 300258 TR
BHI1375BBIL - BEASEREEFE LBMBE
¥ oY t-—MHRFE M _HET AL BEYME
BEIRERBETHRERNRENEEHREBEFERAE
EEERMAREEEY [ER3] BT ES K - M
FUBREE RN EYEERESA D BEEE L
B E/NATE o 1IN - B R EE R 20146
1M ARRIREENR  REBEFE AL E TR MK
FEPFIRE -

NEBNEMO BB 186 8FETL B L—HHFE
HNAE 1400 5 B 08 4299.0% ° DIEEFEMNTE
FIRL)HA1.9% @ B E—BBFEL30.2% K@5m o
UHEZHAREFEREEBREUEREITHBHEFER
AL RFERII% NiE EFAELIEFER36.8%
Fisle- MET BN LB REEBRUERETE
REQULESIE INATER © Mo - BEMR D BROEF|EH L
—HBFERS52.8% BIEEEBEFERNS54.3% °

REFEUCERAR AT ~ 2015/16 EF 5 15



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER DT

Other income

Other income was approximately HK$4.7 million for the year ended 30 June
2016, representing an increase of approximately HK$1.9 million or
approximately 65.1% compared to the previous financial year. This was
mainly due to the increase of (i) a service income generated by the ticketing
system of film exhibition of approximately HK$1.3 million during the year
under review since the commencement of cinema operations in late
November 2014; and (ii) bank interest income of approximately HK$0.7
million during the year under review.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately HK$18.4
million or 21.7% from approximately HK$84.5 million for the previous
financial year to approximately HK$102.8 million for the year ended
30 June 2016. This was mainly due to (i) the general increment to the rental
related expenses of Cinema City Langham Place and other direct costs for
cinema since its commencement of operations in late November 2014 of
approximately HK$12.7 million in aggregate during the year under review;
and (ii) the larger scale of the film released by the Group during the year
under review leading to additional costs of approximately HK$5.7 million
for film advertising and promotion events.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$54.3 million or
approximately 162.7% from approximately HK$33.4 million for the
previous financial year to approximately HK$87.7 million for the year ended
30 June 2016. This was mainly due to (i) the increase in total staff costs by
approximately HK$12.6 million as a result of discretionary bonuses paid to
the Directors to reward their contributions to the Group and the average
number of employees increasing from 61 for the previous financial year to
93 for the year under review; (ii) the grant of share options by the Company
on 13 July 2015 which resulted in a charge of approximately HK$25.3
million to the administrative expenses during the year under review; and (iii)
the increase of amortisation of intangible assets for the advertising,
marketing and publication segment of approximately HK$10.9 million
during the year under review.

Net foreign exchange loss

Net foreign exchange loss increased by approximately HK$6.7 million from
approximately HK$0.1 million for previous financial year to approximately
HK$6.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2016. This was mainly due to
the increase of net exchange loss resulted from the depreciation of RMB
against HK$ by the prevailing rate at the end of the reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment losses recognised for the year

As a result of the uncertainty of the publication business under the
advertising, marketing and publication segment as mentioned in the section
of the Business Review, for prudence sake, impairment loss on goodwill and
intangible assets amounted to approximately HK$43.1 million and HK$20.5
million respectively were recognised for the year under review.

The impairment loss on other receivables for an advance payment made in
relation to a concert investment of approximately HK$2.0 million which was
fully recognised during the year under review due to the doubtfulness of its
recoverability.

Share of results of an associate

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the operation of Jade Dynasty
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “JDH Group”) had recorded a loss
attributable to the Group of approximately HK$0.2 million. JDH Group
generates revenue from the businesses of comics publication and licensing
of its database of comic stories and comics heroes for films, TV series and
theme park development as well as related product merchandising. As
compared to a loss from the previous financial year of approximately
HK$4.5 million, the improvement of the results for the year under review
was mainly due to the rise in the licensing income derived from its database
of comic stories and comic heroes for film, TV series and theme park
development and the reduction of the operating expenses for the comics
publication business.

Share of results of a joint venture

During the year ended 30 June 2016, Bounty Productions Limited (“BPL")
was set up by the Group and two independent third parties for the
production and distribution of the film, namely, “Bounty Hunters” (& &
A), of which the Group owns as to 40% interest. As the film was released
in July 2016, no revenue had yet been recognised during the year under
review and the operation of BPL recorded a loss attributable to the Group
of approximately HK$2.1 million, which mainly represented the share of
administrative expenses of BPL by the Group.

Income tax expense/credit

The income tax expense of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016
amounted to approximately HK$10.3 million at the effective tax rate,
excluding certain non-taxable items which include impairment losses
recognised and share of results of an associate and a joint venture that
were net of tax, was 18.7% mainly attributed by the Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit of the Group for the year
under review. The income tax credit of the Group for the previous financial
year amounted to approximately HK$9.6 million at the effective tax rate,
excluding certain non-taxable items which include impairment losses
recognised and share of results of an associate that was net of tax, was
14.1% mainly attributed by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 16.5% of the
adjusted loss of the Group.
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BEER DT

Loss for the year under review

The Group's loss and total comprehensive expense attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$72.6 million (2015: HK$215.3 million) and HK$73.5
million (2015: HK$215.3 million) respectively. The improvement of the
results for the year under review was primarily resulted from the significant
increases in revenue and gross profit contributed by film and TV series
production and distribution as well as film exhibition businesses and the
decrease of impairment losses recognised during the year under review,
being set off against the increase in the operating expenses of the Group as
aforementioned.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 30 June 2016, the Group's bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately HK$103.3 million (30 June 2015: HK$112.8 million), which
are denominated mainly in HK$, United States Dollar (“US$") and RMB.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have any interest-bearing loans and
shareholders’ loans (30 June 2015: Nil). Gearing ratio was not applicable as
at 30 June 2015 and 2016.

The Group had un-utilised credit facilities totaling HK$35.0 million as at 30
June 2016 (30 June 2015: HK$35.0 million). The Group has maintained
these general banking facilities for flexibility.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately HK$170.2 million (30 June 2015: HK$211.5 million), net
current assets of approximately HK$162.1 million (30 June 2015: HK$156.3
million) and net assets of approximately HK$332.3 million
(30 June 2015: HK$367.8 million). The current ratio of the Group,
representing the ratio of current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 2.3 as at 30 June 2016 (30 June 2015: 1.7).

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group mainly funded its liquidity
by the net proceeds from the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 31 October 2012 (the “Listing”) and issue of
new shares pursuant to the subscription rights attaching to the warrants of
the Company and resources generated internally. The Group's financial
resources are sufficient to support its business and operations. The Group
would also consider other financing activities when appropriate business
opportunities arise under favourable market conditions.

The financial position and liquidity of the Group remain solid and healthy
and there is no material adverse change in the operations of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Fund Raising Activity

The following fund arising activity of the Group had occurred during the
year under review.

Issue of new shares pursuant to subscription rights
attaching to the warrants

On 12 December 2013, the placing of 96,000,000 non-listed warrants to
twelve placees was completed. The warrants conferring the rights to
subscribe for an aggregate of 96,000,000 subscription shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.93 per subscription share. The warrants were
issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 31 October 2013. Assuming the
full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the warrants, it is
expected that approximately HK$89.3 million will be raised and such net
proceeds will be used for general working capital of the Group.

As at 30 June 2015, 67,000,000 warrants were outstanding. As a result of
each of the shares of par value at HK$0.01 being subdivided into four
subdivided shares of par value at HK$0.0025 each as effective from 22 July
2015, based on the relevant terms of the warrants, the exercise price of the
warrants was adjusted from HK$0.93 per share to HK$0.233 per subdivided
share, where such adjustment was effective from the close of business of
the business day immediately preceding the date on which the share
subdivision became effective. In accordance with the adjustment of the
exercise price of the warrants as aforesaid, the number of shares falling to
be issued upon exercise of the warrants changed from 67,000,000 shares
to 267,424,892 subdivided shares as at 30 June 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, a total of 107,768,239 warrants were
exercised which resulted in the Company’s issue and allotment of
107,768,239 new shares of HK$0.233 each. During the year ended 30 June
2016, the net proceeds from the exercise of warrants amounted to
approximately HK$25.1 million being utilised as general working capital as
intended, which had been used for the Group’s film production costs of
HK$14.9 million, cinema operation expenses of HK$5.6 million, and
repayment of bank borrowings of HK$4.6 million. As at 30 June 2016,
159,656,653 warrants were outstanding.

Employee Information

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had 94 full-time employees (30 June 2015:
84). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration and part-time staff,
amounted to approximately HK$34.7 million for the year ended 30 June
2016 (30 June 2015: HK$16.4 million).
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The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and
benefits package to all its employees. The Group has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Group has also adopted other employee benefits including
a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong, as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and has participated in
employee pension schemes organised and governed by the relevant local
governments for its employees in the PRC.

Charge on Assets

The Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$30.4 million and HK$30.5
million as at 30 June 2015 and 2016 respectively, were pledged to secure a
general banking facility of HK$30.0 million available to the Group. As at 30
June 2016, the Group’s bank deposits of approximately HK$0.7 million (30
June 2015: HK$0.7 million) were pledged to secure the bank guarantee
provided by a subsidiary of the Company regarding its due payment under
a cinema equipment rental agreement.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s business operations were conducted mainly in Hong Kong
with transactions principally denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB. The
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated mainly in HK$, US$ and
RMB. Apart from HK$, which is pegged to US$, any significant exchange
rate fluctuations of HK$ against RMB may have a financial impact to the
Group. During the year under review, there was no significant fluctuation in
the exchange rates of these currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit
to any financial instruments to hedge its statement of financial position
exposure during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Capital Commitment

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no other capital commitment for the Group as at 30 June 2015 and
2016.

The commitments are to be financed by internal resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2015 and 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The planned use of proceeds from the Listing as disclosed in the Prospectus
were based on the best estimation of future market conditions made by the
Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus, while the proceeds were
applied in accordance with the actual development of the market.

From 31 October 2012, the date of the Listing, to 30 June 2016, the net
proceeds from the Listing had been applied as follows:

ERER B RO
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Actual use of

Total use of proceeds from

proceeds as the date of the

described in the Listing to

Prospectus 30 June 2016
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HK$’ million HKS$’ million

BEEET BEBET

Expansion of film production business TR B RUEER 58.4 58.4
Invest in equipment for post-production B 15 BB ER A 9.8 7.4
Staff recruitment HEET 2.8 2.8
General working capital —REEED 2.5 25
Total A& 73.5 71.1

The un-utilised proceeds were deposited in the Group’s bank accounts
located in Hong Kong.

The Group intended to expand its film production business by releasing
eleven films during the two years ended 30 June 2013 and 2014. Out of
these eleven films, ten films had been released up to the financial year
ended 30 June 2016 and the remaining film was released up to the date of
this report.

The Group has intended to undertake certain post-production works of its
own films by investing up to HK$11.0 million from the net proceeds in
post-production equipment and recruiting staff for its operation. In
September 2014, the Group established its in-house post-production arm
through cooperating with a well-known post-production house in Hong
Kong which has over twenty years of experience in the post-production
industry, to engage in digital media post-production operations. The
Directors expected that the remaining net proceeds will continue to be used
for procuring the post-production equipment and recruiting more staff to
strengthen the business operation.

The Directors considered that no modification of the planned use of
proceeds described in the Prospectus was required.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

SEENEREEERE

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (“Mr. Wong”), M.H., aged 70, was appointed as a
Director on 8 March 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director
and appointed as the chairman of the Board on 5 October 2012. Mr. Wong
is responsible for the strategic planning of the Group. He is an artist and
filmmaker in Hong Kong, who formed Cinema City Company Limited and
Cinema City (Film Production) Company Limited, both of which are film
production companies, in 1980s. In 1990, Mr. Wong founded Mandarin
Films Limited. Mr. Wong was an executive director of Nine Express Limited,
formerly known as China Mandarin Holdings Limited (“Nine Express”)
(Stock Code: 0009), shares of which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from 21 August 2001 to 18 August 2009. Mr. Wong has
over 30 years of experience in the film industry for each of the roles as
executive producer, script writer and artist and over 25 years of experience
as film director. He has participated in more than 100 films throughout his
career. Mr. Wong was awarded the Medal of Honour by the HKSAR
Government in 2015. He has been the chairman of the Movie Producers
and Distribution Association since 1997. He was a member of the Hong
Kong-Taiwan Cultural Co-operation Committee under Hong Kong-Taiwan
Economic and Cultural Cooperation and Promotion Council from 1 August
2013 to 31 October 2015. He was a member of the Hong Kong Film
Development Council from April 2011 to March 2013. Mr. Wong is the
father of Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina and Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond,
both executive Directors of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina (“Ms. Alvina Wong”), aged 40, was
appointed as a Director on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an
executive Director on 5 October 2012. Ms. Alvina Wong is responsible for
the sales and distribution functions as well as the cinema operation of the
Group and has around 14 years of experience in the film industry, including
assessing market reception of proposed films, providing promotional
services for films and liaising with film distributors and licencees. Ms. Alvina
Wong was an executive director of Nine Express from 1 September 2003 to
1 April 2009. Ms. Alvina Wong graduated from the University of Toronto
with a bachelor’s degree in Arts in June 1998. Ms. Alvina Wong is the
daughter of Mr. Wong and the sister of Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond,
both executive Directors of the Company.

Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond (“Mr. Edmond Wong"”), aged 37, was
appointed as a Director on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an
executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Edmond Wong is responsible for
overseeing film production of the Group. He has around 12 years of
experience in the film industry as script writer and was an executive director
of Nine Express from 3 June 2008 to 13 February 2009. Mr. Edmond Wong
graduated from McMaster University in Canada with a bachelor’s degree in
Arts in June 2002. Mr. Edmond Wong is the son of Mr. Wong and the
brother of Ms. Alvina Wong, both executive Directors of the Company.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong (“Mr. Lam”), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lam graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Management in 1991. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 16 years
of experience in professional audit and extensive experience in the areas of
investor relations management, auditing, mergers and acquisitions and
offshore financing. Since May 2012, he has been an executive director, the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and an authorised
representative of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Since June
2014, he has been a non-executive director of Colour Life Services Group
Co., Limited (stock code: 1778), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam was the chief financial officer, the company
secretary and a qualified accountant of Greentown China Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3900), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from May 2006 to October 2008. Mr. Lam was an executive
director and the chief financial officer of China Aoyuan Property Group
Limited (stock code: 3883), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from September 2009 to May 2012, and was the company
secretary of such company from December 2008 to May 2012. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited
(stock code: 851), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from November 2010 to February 2014 (resigned with effective
on 1 March 2014).

Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk (“Mr. Lo"), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lo has over 17
years of experience in business management in a private company which
trades in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence (“Mr. Tang”), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Tang is a
member of the Royal Institute of British Architects and a committee
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (B A
RBUAW R E ). Mr. Tang is a director of several private companies
engaged in the business including property investment and investment
holding. Mr. Tang was an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of Nine Express from 1 September 2001 to
31 August 2003 and from 1 December 2005 to 29 May 2008 respectively.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EENSAEEERE

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (“Mr. Chan”), aged 41, is the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of the Company as well as director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group responsible for assisting the Directors in
overseeing finance and accounting, internal control, investor relations,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance and regulatory compliance.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 2011. Mr. Chan graduated from
the Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Accounting) in December 2000. Mr. Chan is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan
has over 16 years of accounting and auditing experience accumulated from
working for various international accounting firms and a main board listed
company in Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan Yuen Yee (“Ms. Chan”), aged 55, is the administration
manager responsible for the overall administrative function and assisting in
production contracts management of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the
Group in October 2009. She obtained a diploma in Management Studies
awarded jointly by Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong
Management Association in September 1997. Prior to joining the Group in
2009, she had over 15 years of working experience in administration
management in a film production and distribution company, where she was
mainly responsible for human resources management and office
administration.

Ms. Qian Gao Gao (“Ms. Qian”), aged 55, is the deputy general manager
of L RKBFEA TR ABR AR (“Beijing Pegasus”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, responsible for overseeing the operation
of Beijing Pegasus and assisting in all the Group’s business activities in the
PRC. Ms. Qian joined the Group in January 2012. Ms. Qian graduated from
Beijing Institute of Economy (3t 7 4F & 22 fx) and obtained a degree of
Industrial Statistics under the Department of Industry and Economy
Administration (L BEEE X T XK E) in September 1984. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Qian had over 29 years of experience in the film
industry including 8 years in the SAPPRFT where she was mainly responsible
for reviewing the application for film production and participating in film
subsidisation works; and over 20 years in various film production and
distribution companies in the PRC, where she was mainly responsible for
assisting the parent company in Hong Kong on its investment in the PRC
domestic films and submitting application for film productions including
films under the co-production arrangement in the PRC, redevelopment
works for cinemas in the PRC and identifying film investors.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2016.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the Group's business for the year ended 30 June 2016, a
discussion on the Group's future development in business and the
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 7 and the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 8 to 21 of this annual
report. The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are set out in notes 5 and 6(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
set out in the Financial Summary on pages 155 to 156 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group respects the environment and is committed to the sustainable
development of the environment and the society. In relation to the efficient
use of resources, several measures have been implemented in the Group’s
offices in order to minimise any possible impacts or harms to the
environment by recycling of used papers and toner cartridges. Employees
are also encouraged using double-sided printing to reduce unnecessary
usage of paper.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws,
rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact on the
Group’s business and operation levels, such as the Amusement Rides
(Safety) Ordinance, the Places of Public Entertainment Ordinance, the Food
Business Regulation and the Competition Ordinance.

In addition to safeguard the interests of the Group’s employees, the Group
is committed to complying with the requirements of the Minimum Wage
Ordinance and the Employment Ordinance.
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Report of the Directors

SELWE

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements under
the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") as well as the applicable financial reporting standards.

During the year under review, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers and suppliers.

The Group recognised that employees are the valuable assets of the Group.
The Group has complied with the applicable employment laws and
regulations as well as regularly reviewing the remuneration package of the
Group's employees with reference to market conditions and conform to the
performance, qualifications and experience of employees.

The key customers of the Group include the co-producers, distributors and
movie viewers. The Group is committed to provide good quality service to
its customers and enhance the loyalty of customers by increasing the
interaction with customers through social media platforms particularly in
film exhibition business, which provide good development to the Group’s
overall performance in long run.

The Group has maintained solid and good relationships with its suppliers
which ensures quality supply so as to provide high quality films and services
to customers.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

on pages 51 to 52 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2016 (30 June 2015: Nil).

Segment Information

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years as extracted from the combined and
consolidated financial statements in the annual reports 2012/13, 2013/14
and 2014/15 and this annual report, respectively are set out on pages 155
to 156 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bank Borrowing
The Group did not have bank borrowings as at 30 June 2016.
Interest Capitalised

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 30 June
2016.

Share Capital and Warrants

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and warrants during
the year ended 30 June 2016 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of other equity-linked agreements are included in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2016 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 55 of this annual report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 June 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to
approximately HK$293,974,000 (30 June 2015: HK$347,948,000).
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Report of the Directors

SELWE

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 30 June 2016.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 30 June 2016, income received/receivable from the
top five customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 49.0% (2015:
35.4%) of the Group’s revenue. During the same period, income received/
receivable from the single largest customer accounted for approximately
19.7% (2015: 10.1%) of the Group's revenue.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the fees paid/payable to the top five
suppliers in aggregate constituted approximately 34.2% (2015: 23.8%) of
the Group's total fees paid/payable to the suppliers. During the same
period, fees paid/payable to the largest supplier constituted approximately
19.6% (2015: 5.9%) of the Group's total fees paid/payable to the suppliers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the share
capital of the Company) has any interest in any of the top five customers
and suppliers.

Emoluments Policy

The emoluments of the Directors is recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) after
considering the factors such as the Company’s operating results, individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors and
eligible employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Scheme is set out in the following section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this report. The Group has also adopted other employee
benefit including a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong,
as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and
has participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by
the relevant local governments for its employees in the PRC.
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Details of the emolument of the Directors and five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Scheme has been approved by the then sole
shareholder on 5 October 2012. There was no outstanding share options
under the Scheme as at 30 June 2015 and 2016. Details of the Scheme as
well as the share options granted/lapsed during the year ended 30 June
2016 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation and shall be
eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

By virtue of Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Wong and Ms. Alvina Wong will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group
are disclosed in the section headed "Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 22 to 24 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

SELWE

Directors’ Service Agreements

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being all the
executive Directors, had entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31 October 2012
renewable automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of
the initial term or any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all independent non-executive Directors, had entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company on 1 July 2015. Each letter of
appointment is for a term of one year from the date of the letter of
appointment and renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then current
term of appointment unless terminated by either party giving at least one
month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed to enter
into a service contract/letter of appointment with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by the Group
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation)).

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all
three independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Details of Directors’ interest in contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business are set out in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions/Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or any of
its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of
the year ended 30 June 2016.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the section headed “Related Party
Transactions/Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of which
certain Directors engaged in film-related businesses, none of the Directors
or the controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates as defined in the Listing Rules has any interest in any business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2016.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

On 5 October 2012, Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong, Mr. Edmond Wong and
Honour Grace Limited (“Honour Grace"”) (collectively referred as to the
"Controlling Shareholders”), have given an irrevocable non-compete
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the Group
pursuant to which each of them irrevocably, unconditionally, jointly and
severally undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly or indirectly,
carry on, invest in or be engaged in any business which would or might
compete with the business of the Group. Details of the Non-competition
Undertaking have been set out in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The Non-competition Undertaking has become effective from 31 October
2012, the date of the Listing.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the Non-
competition Undertaking for the year ended 30 June 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and confirmed that
the Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Non-competition
Undertaking and the Non-competition Undertaking had been enforced by
the Company in accordance with its terms for the year ended 30 June
2016.

Contracts of Significance
Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the

Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.
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Report of the Directors

EETHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 30 June 2016, the interests of Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and required to
be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERTHRARRA QAR EBBE
BH R - HERR G KA R KK

E.

201656 A30H  EFERARBIITHABHENRARF
s E A EEEE (EX R FH LIS GRS XVE) 89
i R ARRARR (0 R B BB R 75 5 I B 601 5 XV T
FIRSDHBREMEARNNT) R Z A ER (BIER
BE %&Hﬂ =S GO BB X EEWEEIRRBEEN
z)  RBAREERARRRIEEF K E 4§D 5 352
B EESRMMEZ  BAREEMRANETE
MEFHETESR ZHNHTE R ANRQ T R PR
=T

RAEATRG RABRONER

Percentage of
the Company’s/

Company/name associated
of associated Number of company'’s issued
Name of Director company Nature of interest shares Position share capital
P N
AATFS M ARE BT
EEnE BB AR AR EEME RHEE B BRAEBDL
Mr. Wong Company Interest in a controlled 1,200,000,000 Long 47.55%
corporation (Note)
|mEAE ZA/NE R EE R (B3E) HE
Company Beneficial owner 62,168,000 Long 2.46%
ZA/NS| BEmEAA A
1,262,168,000 50.01%
Honour Grace Beneficial owner 9 shares of Long 60.00%
US$1.00 each
ES ExEAA 9fRAR 1 (FAR HE
EfE1.003T)
Note: These shares are registered in the name of Honour Grace, the entire issued share  MisF : ZERMUNLEMEREL B2 HCBTHRARE LA -
capital of which is legally and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong, 20% by = FIEL E&Eﬁi P RlEEREHER60% « 20% K&
Mr. Edmond Wong and 20% by Ms. Alvina Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is 20% - IRBEFFREEERA - BEEWBRREAE AR

deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of Honour Grace.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 30 June 2016, the interests of the persons, other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of Directors or chief executive of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:
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Percentage of the
Company'’s issued

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Number of shares Position share capital
HAEQTEBIT
BRERBHAE BEME RGEE R A RAEBE DL
Honour Grace Beneficial owner 1,200,000,000 Long 47.55%
E ) E=fEAA A
Mr. Wong Interest in a controlled 1,200,000,000 Long 47.55%
corporation (Note 1)
|mEAE REEE (M$7E1) HE
Beneficial owner 62,168,000 Long 2.46%
BEmia A HE
1,262,168,000 50.01%
Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia (Note 2) 1,262,168,000 Long 50.01%
gzt (fsE2) TR
Ms. Wong Kit Fong Beneficial owner 193,056,000 Long 7.65%
BEF L BEmEE A e
Note 1: These shares are registered in the name of Honour Grace, the entire issued share ~ FizE1: ZEBRHUELBNEEET  E2MBEHTRAHEL

capital of which is legally and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong, 20%
by Mr. Edmond Wong and 20% by Ms. Alvina Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong
is deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of Honour
Grace.

Note 2: Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia, spouse of Mr. Wong, is deemed under the SFO to be

interested in all the shares in which Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

EETHE

Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” in this report, at no time during the year ended 30
June 2016 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that the Directors and
officers shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
with they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
senior management in respect of potential legal actions that may be
incurred in the course of performing their duties.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 36 to 48 of this annual report.

Related Party Transactions/Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 30
June 2016 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
Except for the transactions with BPL are not constituted connected
transactions, all of these related party transactions are connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions fully exempted under Rule
14A.76(1) of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed
that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirm that the Company maintained the amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

Event after the Reporting Period

Details of a significant event occurring after the end of the reporting period
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Pak Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2016
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Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. During the year ended 30 June 2016, it met all the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save as the deviations as mentioned in the
following sections headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
"Board Meeting, General Meeting and Procedures” in this report.

and

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices in
order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the
increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and
investors.

Compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings in Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made all reasonable enquires, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Board of Directors

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for
the Group's activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.
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Board Composition
The Board comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including the Chairman (being
an executive Director), the other two executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors. An updated list of Directors
identifying their roles and functions and whether they are independent
non-executive Directors has been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 22 to 24 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is well
balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive
corporate and strategic planning experiences that can contribute to the
business of the Group. During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company
had complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors representing more than one-third of the Board and at least one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has received an annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by setting up corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Mr. Wong (the Chairman and executive Director of the Company) is the
father of Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong (both of executive
Directors of the Company). Save as disclosed above, there is no family or
other material relationship among members of the Board and the senior
management.

Formal service contracts and letters of appointment have been issued to the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
respectively setting out the key terms and conditions of their respective
appointments.

The insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors and
senior officers is covered by the existing Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance Policy of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1 of the Code. Under the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should be
separated and would not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Board and is responsible for the overall
strategy planning and policy making of the Group. The Chairman also takes
the lead to ensure that the Board works effectively and acts in the best
interest of the Company by encouraging the Directors to actively participate
in the Board's affairs and promoting a culture of openness and debate.

The Company has no such position as the CEO and therefore the daily
operation and management of the Company is monitored by the executive
Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no CEO, the balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals who would meet from time to time to
discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.
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Responsibilities and Delegation of Functions

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management of
the Group. The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”) and senior management of the Company, with a view to
ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations. Any Director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request being made to the Board. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The Board
has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of the Board decisions. The Board periodically reviews the
delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant
transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain the Board’s approval.

No corporate governance committee has been established by the Company
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which included:

(1)  developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(5)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being all the
executive Directors, had entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31 October 2012
renewable automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of
the initial term or any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all the independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 1 July 2015. Each letter
of appointment is for a term of one year from the date of the letter of
appointment and renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then current
term of appointment unless terminated by either party giving at least one
month’s notice in writing.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association. According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office at
each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The Directors to
retire every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last re-election or appointment.

Board Meeting, General Meeting and Procedures
During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Board convened a total of five

board meetings and two general meetings have been held. The following is
the Directors’ attendance record of meetings held by the Board:
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Number of Number of

attendance/ attendance/

number of number of

board meetings  general meetings

wr% e, HERE

EEEHE [E PN ]

Mr. Wong Pak Ming =HIABEE 5/5 2/2
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina =R 4/5 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond HFEEE 5/5 2/2
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MERE S 5/5 0/2
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRE LA 5/5 2/2
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence BRI B 5 A 5/5 2/2
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Code provision A.6.7 of the Code stipulates that the independent non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the Shareholders. Mr. Lam Kam Tong was
unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 21 July 2015 and the annual general meeting of the Company held on
17 November 2015 as he had other business engagements.

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors in advance.
Notice of at least seven days is given for a regular Board meeting. For other
Board and committees meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Board
papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are
dispatched to all Directors at least three days before each regular Board
meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review the
related documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final versions are open for Directors’ inspection. The Company’s
Articles of Association contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors with names as listed out in the section headed “Board
Composition” in this report have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group and such induction materials will also be
provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as
Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Continuing briefings and professional development
to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.
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During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company had organised a
seminar on the updates and the latest development of the Listing Rules,
SFO and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the Directors. The seminar
was facilitated by the Company’s legal advisor with presentation and
relevant materials and all Directors have attended such seminar. In addition,
all Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’s business,
operations and financial matters to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Directors also
participated in other training activities such as attending seminars and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s businesses or to their duties
and responsibilities as directors of a listed company.

All Directors had provided the Company Secretary with their training
records for the year ended 30 June 2016.

Board Committees

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Board has established three board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
Remuneration Committee and nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company, with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange to assist them in the efficient implementation of their functions.
Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on 5 October 2012 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the
Listing Rules and the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review the remuneration,
terms of engagement, independency and objectivity of the external auditor;
to review the accounting policy, financial position and financial reporting
procedures of the Company; and to assess the financial reporting system,
internal control procedures and risk management function of the Company
and making recommendations thereof.

47 Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015/16

HZE2016F6 A30HIEFE  ARFIBEAEERRE

BLmMRA - FHEEBEEN B ERRRGI&IE
BREMERNOMNE - T ShARBERERT

o BRELEHRREMERXXY - BEESCEHE

BB E o i REEFEREEREEES
EERMBEEMNASR BREFERTHERE - &2
2016 F6 A30RIEFE  EFMSHEEMIFINES -

MEFEHRS e REERARRAEERERE(ERLT
RAEENRGE MBERXT -

PRESCAARNMEBREFBENEHZE 201696 A30
A FE R IR o

EEXZET

HZE2016F6 A30AIEFE  EF2CN U =-MES
ZEg MARREZRZES((EBZZEES])  F#
ZEGhREZEC((REZES)) EEEHES
BRI AR DR R R AT AR E - AR B E S B
THBE EECHBTRERTLIZES -

EREEE

BEEGR212F10A5BRIEZEZES - URIE L
MAREI2NIEFI 23K ATAGIEEAMBESHE -
ERZEENIEREAEIINEZBENER - FEII
BERAZEANIE - ZRER B MERFEME  BHA

ARGHE - WIRR BT R - URFPEA
ARSI RRES - AT R AR SRR
fEit B -



The Audit Committee has three members comprising three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Lam Kam Tong (Chairman), Mr. Lo Eric Tien-
cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence. During the year ended 30 June 2016,
the Audit Committee had reviewed the interim results and report of the
Company for the six months ended 31 December 2015. Subsequent to 30
June 2016 and up to the date of this report, all members of the Audit
Committee attended a meeting to review the Group’s internal controls for
the year ended 30 June 2016. The Group's final results and the annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2016 had been reviewed by the Audit
Committee before submission to the Board for approval. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
that adequate disclosure have been made.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, three meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance of each member of the Audit
Committee is contained in the following table:
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 5 October 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review of the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become the Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships of the
Company and to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new
directors, the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the
competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The
resume or document of the nominee or candidate will be given to the
Nomination Committee for consideration. The Nomination Committee has
adopted a process for selection and appointment of new directors which
provides the procedure for identification of potential candidates, evaluation
of the suitability of the candidate based on his qualifications, skills,
knowledge, business and related experience, commitment, ability to
contribute to the Board process and such qualities and attributes that may
be required by the Board. The Nomination Committee shall review the
Board Diversity Policy established for implementing diversity on the Board
periodically.

The Nomination Committee has three members comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk (Chairman),
Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence. During the year ended
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review the structure and composition of the Board, the attendance of each  HEEEFEN T
member of the Nomination Committee is contained in the following table:

Number of
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number of

meetings
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Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk ERERE 2/2

Mr. Lam Kam Tong MERE S 2/2

Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence B RSN Se 4 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 5 October 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review the terms of
the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior
management and making recommendations to the Board regarding any
adjustment thereof; and to review and evaluate the performance of
individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any discussion about his
or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has three members comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence (Chairman),
Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk. The remuneration of the
Directors was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions. During the
year ended 30 June 2016, four meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were held to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Company, the attendance of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is contained in the following table:
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Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence B RR SN Se A 4/4
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MERE S 4/4
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk EREBEE a/4

Remuneration of Senior Management

The biographical details of senior management of the Group are disclosed
in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 22 to 24 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid/payable to senior management of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2016 fell within the following bands:
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year and to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The statement
by the auditor of the Company about their responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 49 to 50 of this annual report. The Board also ensures
the timely publication of the financial statements. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration
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The remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the Group for the year ~ #Z= 201646 830 B IFFE » B BN AEBZE
ended 30 June 2016 is set out as follows: B EH T -

Paid/payable

B EfEE

HK$'000

BETFT

Statutory audit services TEEZERTE 1,377

Non-statutory audit services IEEZEIRTE

Other professional services it ZHR 202

Tax compliance and consulting services T8 AR 88

Total et 1,667

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control system of the
Company. The Board has developed its systems of internal control and risk
management and is also responsible for reviewing and maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company. During the year ended 30
June 2016, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and considers that the internal
control system of the Company is effective and adequate.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chi Ming joined the Group in December 2011 and has been the
Company Secretary since October 2012. The biographical details of the
Company Secretary are set out under the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 24 of this annual
report. The Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Shareholders’ Rights
Communications with Shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and the Shareholders, and investors. These include answering
questions through the general meeting, the publication of annual and
interim reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the Company’s
website at www.pegasusmovie.com.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, there had no change in the
Company's constitutional documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Any general meeting other than an
annual general meeting shall be referred as an extraordinary general
meeting (“"EGM").

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules and
the Company’s Articles of Association as amended from time to time,
Shareholders may convene an EGM to consider proposals in accordance
with the following provisions:

1. One or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings can deposit
a written request to convene an EGM at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Office”),
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary.
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2. The written request must state the name of the Shareholders
concerned, their respective shareholdings, the objects of the meeting,
including details of the business(es) and resolutions proposed to be
considered and approved at the meeting, signed by the Shareholders
concerned.

3. The request will be verified with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an
EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested.

4. If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

5. The notice period to be given to the Shareholders in respect of the
EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal. Notice of the
EGM at which the passing of a special resolution is to be considered,
notice of the EGM shall be arranged to be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 clear days or 10 clear business days (whichever is longer)
before such EGM. Notice of all other EGM shall be arranged to be
sent to the shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days (whichever is longer) before such EGM.

6.  There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the Company’s Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene an EGM following the procedures
set out above in this section.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry in respect of the
Company in writing either by email at ir@pegasusmovie.com or deposited
at the Hong Kong Office for the attention of the Board or the Company
Secretary. The appropriate management member of the Company will
respond to the legitimate enquiry of the Shareholders, the Company’s
potential investors or analysts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PEGASUS ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pegasus
Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 154, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
JEN 2 H AR S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2016, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 September 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

freEm A M R E WS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 % 201646 A30 H L FE

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000

b BETT BETT

Revenue Wz 7 446,381 155,240
Cost of sales SHE A (259,552) (108,419)
Gross profit EF 186,829 46,821
Other income EmA 4,738 2,869
Selling and distribution expenses HE RETRY (102,820) (84,456)
Administrative expenses TR (87,674) (33,369)
Net foreign exchange loss SMNE B 1855 (6,779) (110)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 15 (43,084) (138,000)
Impairment loss on intangible asset B EERERBE 16 (20,514) -
Impairment loss on other receivables H b JEU R IB R B & 18 (2,011) -

Impairment loss on prepayment for investment % & T8 BB /ETE (4 FR B YR E 5 18

in TV series production - (15,750)
Finance costs BhE KA (170) (78)
Share of results of an associate FEAE —EHE & R B R (234) (4,548)

Share of results of a joint venture it —fEaEhEEE (2,090) -

Loss before tax

bR RSB (73,809) (226,621)

Income tax (expense) credit Frisii () E R 9 (10,343) 9,637

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income Hib2mE (BR) WA

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to — FEEASl & B 72180 E H
profit or loss

FAEE 10 (84,152) (216,984)

Share of exchange difference of an associate {5 —FEiB &4 A TIE H =58 29 2
Share of exchange difference of a joint venture [B{H—RI&ENEER =58 (2,485) -
Exchange difference arising on translating MEBINETSE B Z R
foreign operation 1,503 -
(953) 2
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREmMAL AR (85,105) (216,982)
Loss for the year attributable to: THATEIEFREE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE F=DN (72,591) (215,258)
Non-controlling interests IEIE AR b o (11,561) (1,726)

(84,152) (216,984)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reaBnEM IR ER

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

2015
2016 F 20154
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
b BT T BT T
Total comprehensive expense for the year THATEEFAZAERMZ B :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RRAREBA (73,544) (215,256)
Non-controlling interests R (11,561) (1,726)
(85,105) (216,982)
Loss per share BikkEE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) B R #E (BL) 13 9.1
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

l_\_|
N}

NOTES
B EE

Non-current assets RBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 14
Goodwill e 15
Intangible assets B AE 16
Interest in an associate P — e A R ) 17
Interest in a joint venture R—EaEbENER 18
Prepayment to an artiste TarHE 8 BUA 19
Available-for-sale investment AfHERE 20
Deferred tax assets RIERIEEE 33
Current assets REBEE

Film rights BRRE 21
Film production in progress BUEPER 21
Investments in film/drama production BEEY, BB RE 22
Inventories 758 23
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b FE W IR 24
Prepayment to an artiste TEE B 518 19
Rental deposits HEZE 25
Amount due from non-controlling FE UG FE 47 PR b 25 TR TE 30

interest

Tax recoverable B dEE e

Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITIF R 26
Bank balances and cash RITHR LR E 27
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMER IR 28
Receipts in advance TEYRIE 28
Tax payable FESHIE

Amounts due to related companies FEAT AR N 7] 29
Amount due to non-controlling interest FES IR Hﬂ&/\* 30
Amount due to a joint venture ﬁ%ﬂﬂ‘*ﬁﬁ/\%ﬁi K18 31

Net current assets

RBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBAME

BT TSRS

At 30 June 2016 72201656 A 30 H

2016 2015

2016 & 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

39,259 45,458
- 43,084
5,600 37,268
53,887 54,092
47,504
12,000 18,000
4,056 4,056
7,878 9,580
170,184 211,538
3,175 6,931
R 181,753
33,401 25,530
801 931
35,716 12,881
12,000 12,000
19,989 20,130
146 -
- 224
31,165 31,066
72,177 81,750
288,620 373,196
45,582 45,508
69,037 170,683
7,555 -
402 694
- 7
3,918 -
126,494 216,892
162,126 156,304
332,310 367,842
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R

At 30 June 2016 220164 6 A 30 H

2016 2015
2016 & 20154
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
b BT T BETT

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 32 6,309 6,040
Reserves ] 327,718 351,150

Equity attributable to owners of the RATHEB AELER
Company 334,027 357,190

Non-controlling interests FERER (1,717) 10,652

Total equity AL 332,310 367,842

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 154 were approved #HRESI EF 154 BV G EBRECHAARES
and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 28 &R 201649 A28 H#tt /E R IRETIZE - WA T AL

September 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: RAEESE
WONG PAK MING WONG YEE KWAN, ALVINA
=2EB =R
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
SRR EHE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

/\\/ AN

KDREEAELR
Retained
Share profits Non-
Share Share option Other Exchange Warrants ~ (accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Sub-total interests Total
BhE AhREE REEA
Ra REE % HitE EXfE fE  (ZHER) Nt FERER 45
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFT e AT EETR BT AT AT EETT BT BRI
(Note)
(M)
At 1 July 2014 R14ETF1A 4,800 199,168 = 10 23) 710 86,611 291,276 - 291276
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (215,258) (215.258) (1,726) (216,984)
Share of exchange difference of an associate B ARENZE - - - - 2 - - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREANA(FR) 4%
for the year - - - - 2 - (215,258) (215,256) (1.726) (216,982)
Issue of new shares (note 32) BRG (HiE3) 500 62,500 - - - - - 63,000 - 63,000
Cost of issuing new shares BERAR - (3,000) - - - - - (3,000) - (3,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) N BAR (3 460 195,500 - - - - - 195,960 9570 205,530
Cost of issuing consideration shares B A - (500) - - - - - (500) (500)
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants RIERREZRRARG
(note 32) (MisE32) 29 26,895 - - - (215) - 26,970 - 26970
Shares repurchased and cancelled (note 32)  EEERDEHARN (H30) (10) (1,250) - - - - - (1,260) - (1,260)
Capital contribution from non-controlling FRREREMIE
interests - - - - - - - - 2,808 2,808
At30June 2015 015565308 6,040 479313 - 10 )} 495 (128,647) 357,190 10,652 367,842
Loss for the year - - - - - - (72,591) (72,591) (11,561) (84,152)
Share of exchange difference of an associate - - - - 29 - - 29 - 29
Share of exchange difference of a joint venture - - - - (2,485) - - (2,485) - (2,485)
Exchange difference on arising translating
foreign operation - - - - 1,503 - - 1,503 - 1,503
Total comprehensive expense for the year FNREFTEE - - - - (953) - (72,591) (73,544) (11,561) (85,105)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - (1,008) (1,008)
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants
(note 32) f 269 25,040 - - - (200) - 25,109 - 25,109
Recognition of equity-settled share based ﬁEww;ﬁ AL R AER
payments (note 34) e GRED] - - 521 - - - - 25272 - 521
Transfer upon share options lapsed (note 34) ~ BARIE& MBS & (BisE34) - - (25272 - - - 57 - - -
Capital contribution from non-controling FERERETIE
interests - - - - - - - - 200 200
At30June 2016 HR1656 5308 6,309 504,353 - 10 (974) (175,966) 334,027 (1,717) 332310
Note: Other reserve represents the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the et HihEEEREAEEAEFEARARNRBRNMNEBHERS

respective share capital of the companies now comprising the subsidiaries of the
Company over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued pursuant to
the group reorganisation completed on 5 October 2012 (the “Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s

shares on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing”).

1B

ARAE (R
ZRIEMN2012F 10 S RET 2 REEAE(EA]D

RERARRAEMBERRNRAREERAEEERLART
BETRNEENEE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SCEESMER

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &= 201646 A 30 ALt FE

2016 2015
2016 20154
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE BT T BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Loss before tax A pIE 18 (73,809) (226,621)
Adjustments for: ERNIESEEEC
Finance costs BB AR 170 78
Interest income FEWA (1,430) (669)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)% - E NRIETE 14 7,675 4,300
Share-based payment expense ARG BER 2R 34 25,272 -
Amortisation of intangible asset m A EEH 16 11,154 232
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE 15 43,084 138,000
Impairment loss on prepayment for investment % & &R BIBETE(S 3R 1E
in TV series production RRE 1B 15,750
Impairment loss on other receivables Hh fe s IR E 18 -
Impairment loss on intangible asset mZAERERERE 16 -
Impairment loss on film production in progress  ZL{ErR & &R EEE 21 -
Share of results of an associate i e /NI E 17 4,548
Share of results of a joint venture Bl —EaEtEER 18 -
Operating cash flows before movements in LEEREYRIKERENE
working capital 54,899 (64,382)
Decrease (increase) in film rights and film BRRENREERER
production in progress A (35 40) 92,793 (102,325)
Increase in amount due to a joint venture e —ME & DRI M 3,918 -
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (Em) 130 (931)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K H A JE S RIBE A0 107 36,027
Decrease (increase) in rental deposits MEZER (Em) 51 (1,418)
(Decrease) increase in amount due to non- FET IEFE IS RE S T TE (R A ) 32 n
controlling interest (7) 7
Increase in amount due from non-controlling JIE WS S8 AR e 2 SR TR 0
interest (146) -
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to related FEATREEE A~ B ZaE O ) 13N
companies (292) 184
(Increase) decrease in investments in film/ WEEE,BBIZE(EMN) R
drama production (8,350) 4,000
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables £ 5 & b & I =18 (488 00) 5 2> (24,898) 8,139
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance TR R IR CRid) 18 00 (100,892) 161,622
Decrease in amount due to a director EN—BEBEFHIERLD = (6,389)
Cash generated from operations LSS 34,534
Income tax paid EARTATISH (4,680)
Income tax refunded 2R B FEH -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMEREFHE 29,854

56 Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015/16



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER
For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

2016 2015
2016 20154F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
ihg=s BT T BT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Formation of a joint venture R —FHaEE 18 (52,079) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FE EMRITER (31,165) (31,066)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment HEWE  WMENMEE 14 (1,498) (47,458)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary U — M B A FlHEEIMERS (1,008) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries =N 37 — (5,995)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIEERITFR 31,066 30,173
Interest received EFE 1,430 669
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHFIARSFHE (53,254) (53,677)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REES
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of — FA{T{ERRAEE 18 B 1T AX (D
warrants Z TS 50E 25,109 26,970
Capital contribution from non-controlling IEER R TIEE
interests 200 2,808
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHIR D 2 FTS F0E 63,000
Interest paid 2RHE (78)
Cost of issuing new shares BATE R BIRAR (3,000)
Shares repurchased and cancelled B E R HER R (1,260)
Cost of issuing consideration shares BITRERR DA (500)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMETHMEREEHE 87,940
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBELEEY L) BINFRE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,664) 64,117
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING £ #HRERRELZEY
OF THE YEAR 81,750 17,633
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEEFE R F s & 2,091 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF THE EXRRENRBEELZEEY -
YEAR, represented by bank balances and cash 53R 7 74588 RIS 81,750
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2016 &= 201646 A 30 ALt FE

58

General

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 8 March 2012. The Company'’s registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is located at Rooms 1801-2, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Its immediate and ultimate holding company
is Honour Grace Limited (“Honour Grace”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 31
October 2012 and have been transferred from GEM to Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 9 January 2015.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group's core
business includes film and television (“TV") series production,
distribution and licensing of film rights, film exhibition, post-
production, and advertising, marketing and publication. By forming
an integrated film production and distribution chain, the Group
successfully expanded its business operations to better position itself
as a group with diversified cultural industry business. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollar ("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

wos woN =

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Leases*

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Disclosure Initiative®

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a
credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

o The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, however, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types
of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed reviewed has been completed.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may have a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17
Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a
lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognize depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an
interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash flows.
Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.

The Directors will assess the impact of the application of HKFRS 16.
For the moment, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of the application of HKFRS 16 until the Group performs
a detailed review.

Except as described above, the Directors anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the
Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating unit (“CGU") or groups of CGUs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount

of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investment in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or a joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Income from the distribution of own produced films is recognised
when the production is completed, the film has been released and
distributed to the cinema circuit and the amount can be measured
reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit confirms to the
Group its share of box office receipts.

Income from the licensing of the distribution rights over films is
recognised when the Group's entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the relevant agreements, is
usually upon delivery of the film negatives to the customers.

Amounts received for the distribution rights over films before

completion and delivery of production are accounted for as receipts
in advance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from advertising service is recognised upon the provision of
the services. Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Income from box office takings for film exhibition is recognised upon
the sale of tickets and when the film is released.

Revenue from sales of goods, including merchandise and
concessionary in the cinema, is recognised upon the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Income from the screen advertising is recognised when relevant
advertisements and programme are exhibited pursuant to the terms
of the relevant agreements.

Membership income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
membership period.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income from investments in film/drama production is recognised
when the Group's entitlement to such payments has been established
which, subject to the terms of the relevant agreements.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of asset less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Film rights and film production in progress

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). The Group amortises costs of
film rights in the same ratio that current period actual revenue
(numerator) bears to estimated total projected revenue
(denominator). The Group begins amortisation of the capitalised costs
of film rights when a film is released and it begins to recognise

revenue from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total projected revenue
and total production costs of film rights at the end of each reporting
period. If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the amount of total
projected revenue (denominator) from the period when such changes
in estimates take place and re-calculated the ratio for amortisation of
film rights. The effect from changes in estimates is recognised on a

prospective basis.

Film production in progress is stated at cost less any provision for
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs associated with the
production of films including remuneration for the film director, casts
and production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup and hairdressing
as well as rental of camera and lighting equipment. Film production

in progress is transferred to film rights when the film is released.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Joint arrangements
Joint operations

When a group entity undertakes film production activities under joint
venture arrangements (which do not involve the establishment of a
corporate entity) and shares the ownership of the film rights upon
completion of the production with other ventures, such film rights
are classified as joint operation. The Group recognises its share of the
joint operation and its share of liabilities incurred jointly with other
ventures in the consolidated statement of financial position, classified
according to their nature.

The Group recognises the income derived from the joint operation (in
accordance with its revenue recognition policy set out above),
together with its share of any expenses incurred in respect of its
interest in the joint operation in its consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost, being their fair value at the date of acquisition,
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible assets measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other
than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or
services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains
the goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when the
Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render services,
unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the
sale.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the
company (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables
and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
investments in film/drama production, trade and other receivables,
amount due from non-controlling interest, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment on financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-for-maturity
investments.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of loans and receivables have
been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in

the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for similar financial assets. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group companies are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amount
due to non-controlling interest, amount due to a joint venture and
amounts due to related companies) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit of loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not remeasured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimates (see below), that the Directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Amortisation of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected revenue of the film
rights based on their economic lives in order to ascertain the amount
of amortisation charges for each reporting period. The appropriateness
of the amortisation estimate requires the use of judgement and
assumptions with reference to the prevailing and future market
conditions to estimate total projected revenue over their economic
lives. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a
material effect on the amortisation expenses. The carrying amount of
the film rights as at 30 June 2016 is HK$3,175,000 (2015:
HK$6,931,000). Details are set out in note 21.

Estimated impairment loss on film rights and film
production in progress

Management of the Company (“Management”) regularly reviews the
recoverability of the Group's film rights and film production in
progress with reference to its intended use and current market
environment and its expectation of future market conditions.
Appropriate impairment for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on film rights and film production
in progress is required, the Group takes into consideration the
distribution and license agreements entered into by the Group and
the current market environment to project cash flows expected to be
received through box office receipts and distribution and licensing
income. Impairment is recognised in the period in which the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount. The carrying
amount of film rights as at 30 June 2016 is HK$3,175,000 (2015:
HK$6,931,000). The carrying amount of film production in progress
as at 30 June 2016 is HK$80,050,000 (2015: HK$181,753,000).
Impairment loss of HK$17,934,000 (2015: nil) has been recognised in
respect of film production in progress for the year ended 30 June
2016. Details are set out in note 21.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment loss on investments in film/
drama production

In assessing the recoverability of investments in film/drama
production, Management assessed the credibility of the
counterparties, the progress of the related film/drama production and
the market condition. Management determines the provision for
impairment of investments in film/drama production taking into
account the estimation of future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amount of investments in film/drama production as at 30 June 2016
is HK$33,401,000 (2015: HK$25,530,000). Details are set out in note
22.

Estimated impairment loss in interest in an associate

Management review the recoverable amounts of the Group’s
associate by reference to the share of present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated by the investee and the
ultimate disposal of the investment. The amount of the impairment
loss in respect of an associate is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of an associate and the recoverable amount.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of interest in an
associate as at 30 June 2016 is HK$53,887,000 (2015:
HK$54,092,000). Details are set out in note 17.

Estimated impairment loss in interest in a joint
venture

Management review the recoverable amounts of the Group’s joint
venture by reference to the share of present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated by the investee and the
ultimate disposal of the investment. The amount of the impairment
loss in respect of a joint venture is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of a joint venture and the recoverable
amount. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of interest
in a joint venture as at 30 June 2016 is HK$47,504,000 (2015: nil).
Details are set out in note 18.

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015/16

EF TR ER RN EZRF (F)

REER BERENGTRESSR

FEREEY BB RN TR E e - BRE
AETHFANGER BEEY EERIEEE
kTR EREETRESY,HEIRIERNRE
B CEBIRSRMEENRIAERF XA
ZRERE S ENERAR) ITRANRRES
e (TRIEHAREENRREESIE) &G -
WEBRARRRSREENTER - BIRJgEEEEKR
HEEE - N20165F6 A308  #EEF B
B B VER BRI B A 78 %5 33,401,000 7T (2015 £F
725,530,000 7T ) © AEIBEIAKIE22 ©

R—EBE QR ESNETHRERE

ERENZEREHERERGERHEREBHRESL
MEETARRE S RERERMAANEEH E D A]H
AIEl £ %8 - BE AR EBE S B IR &
ARREESETERSE ANEETE - WE
BRRIVEREENTEL] © IR EEEEARIE
BB o N2016E6 9300 R—EBL ARI#E
A EBREE AB %5 53,887,000 7T (2015 4F : Bk
54,092,0007T) © FFIBEHAMIFE17 -

R-—EEEhERBNMETHRERE

EBREBN2EREHRRGRLERES(HTEL
EENGETRARBSRERESHAEELAED
E¥MAOeiE c AL ENREBESBE R
AEMCERABEREIEKRSE HNEEAE -
MEBRRFIRS MEENTER - BIFJaEEAEEKR
RIEETE - 1 20165F6 A30H r R—EA &%
ERFHIRTEE BB 47,504,000 7T (2015 4F
) o FHIEHN ML 18 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment loss on available-for-sale
investment

In assessing the recoverability of available-for-sale investment,
Management assessed the credibility of the counterparty, the
progress of the related animation production and the market
condition. Management determines the provision for impairment of
available-for-sale investment taking into account the estimation of
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of available-for-sale
investment as at 30 June 2016 is HK$4,056,000 (2015:
HK$4,056,000). Details are set out in note 20.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are impaired
based on the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use of the CGU to which goodwill and intangible assets have been
allocated.

As at 30 June 2015, the recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation which requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. In the
future cash flows estimates, Management considers the publishing
cooperation agreement (which is a contractual right that used to
publish a magazine) would be renewed indefinitely every four years
whereas such renewals are subjected to all parties not objecting to
the renewals. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or where there are changes in the terms of the publishing
cooperation agreement, material impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 June 2016, Management intends to terminate the
publication cooperation agreement and cease the publication of a
magazine due to its unsatisfactory operating result. The recoverable
amount of Chili Platinum Advertising and Magazine Publishing
Limited (“Chili Platinum”) is determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal calculations, determined by the cost approach.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill is nil (2015:
HK$43,084,000), net of an impairment loss of HK$43,084,000 (2015:
HK$138,000,000) recognised to profit or loss during the year ended
30 June 2016 and the carrying amount of intangible assets is
HK$5,600,000 (2015: HK$37,268,000), net of an impairment loss of
HK$20,514,000 (2015: nil) recognised to profit or loss during the
year ended 30 June 2016. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in notes 15 and 16, respectively.
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RFHEAHEERENATRENE - BEEFHR
SHFNEE AR ERFENER RTIHNK
N EEERERREMEERERFNE (AN
FRERREANBERMNE) BROMETARERE
mE(TEEMAREENARREERR) EE AT H
HERERERE -

HERARBRESREERTEY  ELEEARE
Eii8 - 720166 A30H @ At HEREWNER
H{E A7 % 4,056,00070(20154F : 7##4,056,000
JC) ° FEIEERKITE20 ©

EITEERETEERE

ETREREVEEGTRENREAFERL
ERANEEMELEERORL 2 REEL B[
ZEREEZBRSEME °

R2015F6 A308 ' AJREIFE T ENF BE
BrfEAETE  REXAEERHTZREESL
BUELAZAKBESRE  WAEE 2R RET
HHRE -t RKRRESRER  BEERE
R & e (B AR SR PR R A9 & 40
AISNFERPEE  WEBMEBAEINSH
WEREZERTHIEE - MERZRKIRE
MEENBHKLIREERZE ZIGREMEES
Alge g HIRENRERIE -

MR2016F6 A30H MR EMEBKELEEER
f TEERKRLENRAERZELIELEHR—F
Mw o HEASHSESHRERAG([EEA
WK EEBIHERAFERHEK AT
g WIRKAEET -

20166 A30H @ MEZEEEAZ(20154F
543,084,000 ) + A& NFRE £20164F 6 A 30
HIEFERIBERER 2R EEIEE 43,084,000
(20154 : 7% 138,000,0007T) A R EFEE
2 BRE B A& 7 #5,600,0007C (20154 : & #
37,268,00070) ' &K% EHZE2016F6 A30H 1
FEREEANERIREEEBE 20,514,000 7T
(20154 : &) - AIWE SR 2 AT E 15D R
15 K% 164 FE -
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and accumulated losses.

Management reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, Management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of Management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

5.

EXEREE

AEBEREAEERRAEEERAUFERL
2 WHEBGRESERENREFEN SRR
RESEAME - NEBEHERRIKE FFEMEL

BT -

AEENEAEBEEREIASFEMRAR
AE ARG ER (BERARRAER) -

EEETE R BEAGERE - FERRIHN—E7 -
EREEEREANARESEARRRIABEOR
e REEEENESR  AEEKBEBEXNK
B BT AREITHES LBLER B EHF
BEBRBERER -

Financial Instruments 6. RITH
6a. Categories of financial instruments 6a. SRTEMNER
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ER K ERGRIE
cash equivalents) (BPREREeRREEEY) 166,687 147,378
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 4,056 4,056
Financial liabilities EMaE
Amortised cost BN 27,048 21,717
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investment, investments in film/drama production, trade
and other receivables, amount due from non-controlling
interest, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amount due to non-controlling interest,
amount due to a joint venture and amounts due to related
companies. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with the Group’s
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The functional currency of all group companies is HK$ except
for ERKRBEAFEULERRAE ("IRKE "), ERE
BYREBAERAR, DEREXLEEARAR and BS
XA EHE(LEE) BRAF ("B E X{t") of which their
functional currency is Renminbi (“"RMB"). At the end of each
reporting period, the carrying amount of the monetary assets
and liabilities of the group companies, which are denominated
in foreign currencies, are as follows:

Australian Dollar (“AUD") BT (BT ])
RVB ARE
United States Dollar (“USD")  ET([ZE7T))
Euro (“EUR") Bt (TBot))
HK$ B
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6. SRTHE)

6b. EREAMEERBERBEK

2016
2016 &
Assets
BE
HK$'000
BT T

15
4,258
32,088
)
1,352

AEENFECRITAREAHRLERE
KREBY HBEIEE &5 REMEBKR
T EWIEE R ERIE - BEMRITE
Ko RIOTEHRERE  BHREMENK
T AR ESRIR BN —HAE
CEFALEMNBEBARRE - ZFTR
TAMFBENEEMERE - AHAKHE
TRTANRBRBETSRERR (B ER K
MERER)  EERRERSHESRER - 40
MEEZ TR BEREN T X - EEE
B NERZERR - BR MK BB
REUEE I

5B
E¥mER

E¥EARRERTANAFEXARARRES
S RSN P < B B T M B AREE AR O LR

SEFMAKBERRININEERGSEE -
HIERXEBEZRUEERAF (TR
RED  LERBEXREEFRAR
EBREXMEREARRRREBHXCE
B(EB)ARRR(BEXXDEN - H
DEREEEASARE(TARKE] - RE®RE
HIR - REKERABAIINEHENERE
ERBEEREENT

2015

20154
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
aE BE =L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BT T
15 -
17,863 -
21,038 242
23 -
1,330 -
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

90

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
RMB and USD against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the
Group does not expect any significant movement in USD/HK$
exchange rate and this is excluded from the sensitivity analysis
below. No sensitivity analysis for AUD and EUR are presented
as Management considered the exposure is insignificant.
Management will monitor foreign exchange exposure to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

At the end of each reporting period, certain group companies,
of which their functional currency is HK$, had amounts due
from People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") subsidiaries which
are denominated in RMB. These intra-group balances are
approximately HK$66,548,000 (2015: HK$76,152,000) as at
30 June 2016.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents Management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items including the above intra-group
balances and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
negative number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss
where HK$ weaken 5% against RMB. For a 5% strengthening
of HK$ against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss and the balances below would
be positive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
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£RMITE(E)
6b. 2REAKTEEEREE (E)

5 m g ()

Bm g ()

2016 2015
2016 & 2015 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Profit or loss (note) Bz (FsE)

(2,956) (3,925)

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank balances,
investments in film/drama production and intra-group balances at the end
of the respective reporting period.

Management considered the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to investments in film/drama production and fixed rate pledged
bank deposits (see notes 22 and 26 for details of these
balances respectively).

In addition, the Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances.

i i EERASREMRORTLEY WA
¥/ WBIRIER KN BB TN ARE
B

F P A 3R 15 B R A R B QA [ BR 4 79 Y
% MEREERABREDIMATKKE
BHINERR

FlI 3 =1 B
ﬂl‘iﬂ RATBMIANDATFESIAKRE
mERE TSN EEF TR KB R o

AEEEHBRERY BB ERERE
FE M R B WA IRIT A R FER X 2
(R BRSO B 2B E 22 2 26) -

SN - AN SR IR E bR A BT BN R ARTT A
FREIR B RA EE g -

REFEZERER AR ~ 2015/16 F1 91



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

6. SRTH(E)
6b. *RMEAKTEEERBE (E)

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

92

policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher for bank

balances, and all other variables were held constant, the impact
to the Group’s loss for the year is as follows:

FIE @b ()

fHIRITAE RN X EFS0EES - MAE
HEthBEBRFIE  HAKEFANEIE
FENT

2016 2015

2016 & 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

FAEBER D

Decrease in loss for the year

296 341

No sensitivity analysis for the decrease in interest rate of bank
balances is presented as Management considered that it is not
meaningful to assume a decrease of 50 basis points lower for

HARIBITEBNAFENIZ0.01% £0.3%
(20154 : 0.01% £0.35%) & F 7| X 3
8 - BIEER AR RER 50 EEZIT

the interest rate because the bank balances carried interest \EE WU EZIRITESRIETREL
0.01% 1o 0.3% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum during BRE DT ©

the current year.

Credit risk =B

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, Management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, Management
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds including pledged bank deposits
and bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good reputation.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on one
of its trade customers which accounted for 75% (2015: 33%)
of its trade receivables as at 30 June 2016. The top customer
has a good repayment history and long-term working
relationship with the Group.

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on a
production house which accounted for 58% (2015: 76%) of its
investments in film/drama production as at 30 June 2016. The
production house is an independent third party, which is well-
known film/drama production house in United States.

Except for the above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by Management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
other sources of funding and considers the risk is minimal.

The following tables provide details of the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include principal cash flows only.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. ST A (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. LRIAMEEBZERBE (&)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) nEELEE ()

On demand Total
or 0-90 91-365 Over undiscounted Carrying
days days 1 year cash flows amount

RERS, ARRRE
0Z£90H 91Z365H —FHE REAR REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT BETT

At 30 June 2016 R2016E6F30H
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMENTIE 22,728 22,728 22,728
Amounts due to related (TR AR B
companies 402 402 402
Amount due to a joint venture [EN—HABCETA 3,918 3,918 3,918
27,048 27,048 27,048
On demand Total
or 0-90 91-365 Over  undiscounted Carrying
days days 1 year cash flows amount
RERH AHRRE
02908  91%E365H —FE nE e FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BT
At 30 June 2015 R2015€6F30AH
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMENTIE 21,016 - - 21,016 21,016
Amounts due to related FE 1< BB A 1 FUE
companies 694 - - 694 694
Amount due to non-controlling  JEN JEERRIER B
interest 7 - - 7 7
21,717 - - 21,717 1,717
6¢c. Fair value 6c. AFE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are SREERSHABENATENIERBAR
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing EEEXBEEEREERESMMERE
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial SBED A IREBEK ARG S BRI
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the EXIENCREERGENERERAEN
consolidated statement of financial position approximate their FAEARE o

fair values.
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Revenue 7. WE
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Film production, distribution and licensing income & &/&L{E + 21T N 1 T4E (0 F S AT U A 297,107 77,011
Film exhibition income B A 137,489 73,141
Advertising, marketing and publication income FEE -~ TIGHE & LRI 6,663 790
Advertising income EEWRA 3,130 1,786
Post-production income 1B ERBIEIR A 1,992 1,140
Service income BRESUA = 1,372
446,381 155,240
Segment Information 8. oHMEH
The Group identifies operating segments on the basis of internal REB IR RE B E A R HRPT 6y &6 R o
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed FREDE  ZELEHEBREE(FT2EER
by the Directors, the chief operating decision makers (“CODM") in FE(XZ2EEBERFEE])) THEN  UESE
order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their DEVEIREETEERR -
performance.
For the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group is organised into four HZE2016F6 A0 ILFE - REEHRIUT
main reportable segments as follows: MEEZr 2HH 0 -
(i)  Film and TV series production and distribution; () EBENERBEIREREETT
(i) Film exhibition; (i) BRI
(iiiy  Post-production; and (i) 1RHARYE &
(iv)  Advertising, marketing and publication (iv) BEE - miSHERER
In January 2015, Cinema City Langham Place, the Group's flagship MR2015F1 A - AEBG NI AE SR TE
cinema located in prime area of Mongkok is officially commenced B0 Cinema City BIZ DT IERXFZ - ZEX &
operation. The cinema has six auditoriums equipped with the most BREMERE  RESTENRTEREERSR
advanced projection and sound systems. The introduction of the IE S| AR [4Dx] BRE I - BB
"4Dx", an exclusive viewing technology from South Korea bring an RAIFAABHEZER - Bt - AEBBEZW
unprecedented experience of film viewing in Hong Kong. BRZE A 2 A TR & 2B 88 6 7 o SR IR RIS
Accordingly, the Group generated film exhibition income and the MEFERER [ BEHE | REDFHIBETZT] -

sales of goods and services in the cinema which was presented under
“Film Exhibition” reporting segment for both years.
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8.
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Segment Information (Continued)

As stated in note 37(l), the Group, through acquired a 80% equity
interest in Skywork Media Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong for a cash consideration of HK$1.00 in September 2014,
established its in-house post-production arm through cooperating
with a famous post-production house in Hong Kong with over twenty
years of experience in film post-production industry to participate in
digital media post-production operation with a view to form an
integrated film production chain in Hong Kong. As a results, the
Group commenced its film post-production business during the year
ended 30 June 2015 and generated post-production revenue which
was presented under “Post-production” reporting segment for both
years.

Upon the completion of the acquisition of Chili Advertising &
Promotions Limited (“Chili”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “Chili Group”) in June 2015, details are set out in note 37(ll),
Chili Group is a full service marketing agency principally engaged in
the provision of advertising and marketing services including event
management, product advertisements, product branding as well as
organizing film advertising and promotion services. In addition, Chili
Group engaged in printed and digital media publication business, the
operation of a private members’ club and the publication of a
monthly issued luxury lifestyle magazine, namely “Platinum of
UnionPay"”, which features a wide range of the most updated news
on luxurious lifestyle related products and services ranging from
fashion, jewellery, entertainment, food and restaurants, leisure, to art
and culture. The magazine is targeted to the high-ended consumer
market of Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. As a result, the Group
considers to present this business acquired under “Advertising,
marketing and publication” reporting segment.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represent the profit earned or loss incurred by
each segment without allocation of other income, certain of selling
and distribution expenses, administrative expenses, finance costs,
share of results of an associate and share of results of a joint venture.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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Segment Information (Continued) 8. 7EEFR (&)

Segment revenue and results D EBUN IR R A

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REBE WS REBILR A 2R EEEDEBEI DD
reportable and operating segment. W o

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ20165F6 A30HLFE

Film and
TV series Advertising,
production marketing

and Film Post- and
distribution exhibition production publication Total

EXRERR BE W5
SERBT BB #AsE HRER TR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETL BT

Segment revenue 7 Epk
— External customers — INERF 300,237 137,489 1,992 6,663 446,381
Segment profit (loss) HELEFI(E18) 58,856 (12,876) (3,769) (79,870) (37,659)

Unallocated other income ROBEEAEA 1,754
Unallocated head office and AOENEDROERY

corporate expenses (35,410)
Finance costs BARA (170)
Share of results of an associate ~ JEME—RIB & N B ¥EE (234)

Share of results of a joint venture  JEfF— A& MEEE (2,090)

Loss before tax BEETEE (73,809)
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. HEMEFR(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) L eSS ESAE )
For the year ended 30 June 2015 BZE2015F6 A30HLEFE
Film and
TV series Advertising,
production marketing
and Film Post- and
distribution exhibition production publication Total
B
BRE BE - Ti5
BUE 31T BRI REABME R R HR #aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BT
Segment revenue 7 Eil
— External customers — PR E 80,169 73,141 1,140 790 155,240
Segment loss PEEE (32,934) (37,876) (1,998) (137,993) (210,801)
Unallocated other income RABREMAEA 669
Unallocated head office and KOENBHREERT
corporate expenses (11,863)
Finance costs RERKA (78)
Share of results of an associate  JE{E—EEEL AR £ (4,548)
Loss before tax BRERIEE (226,621)
As the Group's segment assets and liabilities are not regularly HRAREBN S HEENNAGBTIETHEHT A
provided to the Group’s CODM, the relevant analysis for both years is EENTFBEEERTE  WHEZMEFED
not presented. BEADMT -
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. 7EEFR (&)
Other segment information Hithn ZBE R
For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZE2016F6 A30HLFE

Film and
TV series Advertising,

production marketing

and Film Post- and
distribution  exhibition production publication Unallocated
BIBER BE mH
BT ERER  AHRfE BERHER FAE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr ATt BETx BBtz EBTr A% Tn

Amounts included in the measured of T E D EFIBRFTEE
segment profit or loss: HEH

Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - i RRETE
equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset EVEERH

Amounts regularly provided to the THREFTELE
CODM but not included in the RREBHEHDER
measure of segment profit or loss: BIEaENSE:

Interest income FEHA 1,430 1,430
Share of results of an associate i —fEE N EE (234) (234)
Share of results of a joint venture [EfE—FRagEEE (2,090) (2,090)
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. HEMEFR(E)
Other segment information (Continued) HihnBER (F)
For the year ended 30 June 2015 BZ201556 A30HLFE
Film and
TV series Advertising,
production marketing
and Film Post- and
distribution exhibition  production  publication  Unallocated Total
Y
BREIRE BE M5
K& BYAME RHEME  BEERER AR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B®Tr  BRTT BTt BRTR BBt BET:R

Amounts included in the measured 5t &5 EM1B B T EE
of segment profit or loss: MEH -

Depreciation of property, plant ME - BENRETE
and equipment 231 3,003 891 13 162 4,300

Amortisation of intangible asset BREEEN - - 232 - 232
Amounts regularly provided to the  FHIRRE T EE2E
CODM but not included in the REEEHEDBERER
measure of segment profit or loss: ~ WEEEH S :
Interest income FISUA - - - - 669 669
Share of results of an associate Bl —RBERR%EE - - - - (4,548) (4,548)
Geographical information i & &R
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers by KREBRBINIBRFHWZIRE R BT RIRH %
geographical market based on where the film distribution and TTHRESE AR AT IR A T fE B0 [ T 35 B 2 9 5 AT 0
licensing income is derived from are as below: T
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Hong Kong and Macau 8 KB 196,597 99,527
The PRC el 192,968 45,210
North America b3 23,337 -
South East Asia Region HEInihE 17,292 4,310
Others Hinib[@ 16,187 6,193

446,381 155,240
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Segment Information (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of the assets

7 ERE# ()
wEER (&)

are details below: T

2016
2016 £
HK$°000
BETT
The PRC e 273
Hong Kong 0 169,911
170,184

Information about major customers EBRXTEREFNER

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

REEMELERSI DN AREBIEREEEFTIMN

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT

347
211,191

211,538

HREFERESAEEAHEERRRME10%NE

FlasanT

2016

2016 £
HK$'000
BT T

Customer A’ T E
Customer B’ BB
Customer C' EER

N/A?
87,753
78,159

! Revenue from film and TV series production and distribution.
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group.

! KEBERERBIBUEREITHOUE ©

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT

15,750
N/A2
N/A2

’ ARSI R ERASERKEN 10% AL -
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9. Income Tax Expense (Credit) 9. FEHMAX(ER)
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
The income tax expense (credit) comprises: RSBy (FHe) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEF G
— current — BNER 48
— under (over) provision in prior years — BEFERETE (BREER) (77)
(29)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") BTSSR ([EMEH])
— current — BEA _
— underprovision in prior years —BEFEREBTE -
(29)
Deferred taxation (note 33) IRIEFIE (FFFE33) (9,608)
(9,637)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated &SN 15 T 4= M 8 F 2 & b 5T R BUR A A
assessable profit for both years. 16.5% 7T & °
Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law") and Implementation RIEPECEMSEE((REMEBE]) kb
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries are FTSBUEE MR A] - R EM B A R 20084 1 A
25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. 1 BREEEATER25% °
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Income Tax Expense (Credit) (Continued) 9.

The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

FrEBMA (ER) (&)

RFTRERIEATE R RN T

2016
2016 &
HK$'000
BT T

Loss before tax

FRELRIES IR (73,809)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of impairment loss on goodwill

Tax effect of impairment loss on prepayment for
investment in TV series production

Tax effect of impairment loss on intangible asset

Tax effect of impairment loss on film production
in progress

Tax effect of impairment loss on other receivables

Tax effect of share of results of an associate

Tax effect of share of results of a joint venture

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Under (over) provision in prior years

Others

LA SRR 2R 16.5% =T E I B TE
(20154 : 16.5%)

BAERFIMAOH G E

AT OS2

(12,178)
(521)

7,827

RERNRBBBENREZE 2,055
B A SC AR R M TR IR E R
DA%
BEREEBRNRERE

S E BB RETRNKIRAREFE
BB E
BIVEEREBENREZE
SERERNREBRRNRETZE

(804)
7,109

Hit SRR EBENRIE T E
IS —MEB 2 AR RENTHBRE
ElE—HaEERRENRETE
REM RDERE R 2 ERHE AR
MR ENTE
BEFEBEETR GRERE)
Hity

Tax charge (credit) for the year

FAREH (HER)

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.

AR IRE AN 33 -

FRBIASN L (ER) BiEaBE R EM2EK

Bk

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT

(226,621)

(37,392)
61)
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10. Loss for the Year

10. FREE

2016
2016 F
HK$°000
BET T

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 11)

Other staff costs

Retirement benefit scheme contributions,
excluding those of Directors

FRBEEHBR A TSR RTH

BEHI(HE1) 11,393
H b8 Tk A 22,116

BAREME RS TREESEHNK
1,171

Total staff costs BIKAEEE 34,680
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN < 1,377
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERETE 7,675
Amortisation of intangible asset B R 11,154

Cost of film rights recognised as an expense

Impairment loss on film production in progress
(included in cost of sales)

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
in respect of:
Premises
Cinema

Contingent rents incurred for cinema

Cost of services provided

Cost of inventories sold

Share-based payment expense

and after crediting:

Bank interest income

Membership fee income (included in other income)

Investment income from investments in film/drama
production (included in other income)

Handling service income (included in other income)

MR RN EZRERA

SUEPEZMRIERE
(FIAHERA)

T EHER TAREBEENK -

171,315

17,934

ES 4,314
B LYA LT
BEXREENIATS 1,509
IREHRIEAAR 61,052
HEFERA 2,657

AR BEREON RS 25,272

Wt AA TS IRRFTHE

RITHIBHA

RERAGIARMEA)

REERBEIRENRERA
(FYAEAHA)

B2 RFS WA (B AEAUA)
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2015

20154
HK$'000
BT T

6,146
9,694

581

16,421

1,162
4,300
232
72,892

2,035
52,751
877
33,610
1,666

669
162

765
993
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11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’

Emoluments

Directors and the chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows:

Directors’
fees

ExHE
HK$'000
R

For the year ended 30 June
2016

Executive Directors (Note a)
Mr. Wong Pak Ming

Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond

Independent non-executive
Directors (Note b)

Mr. Lam Kam Tong

Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk

Mr. Tang Kai Kui, Terence

BZ201656A30H
ILEE

HTES (Hita)
LRl
BRHNL
BETEEL

BUKHTES (FriEh)
HRELE

BREAE
BRSEE

1. EE THREZBREEMS

EERTHRAZHE

RIEEAE AR B R A RGP R EE R F N E
ERTBEENMEIT

Bonus

A
HK$'000
BETT

(Note c)
(M=t c)

Salaries and
other
allowances
FeR
HitZ Rk
HK$'000
BETT

Retirement
benefit
scheme

contributions
RIGER
STEIfR
HK$'000
BETT

Total

A
=)

HK$'000
ik
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11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’

106

Emoluments (Continued)

M. B THREBREENS (F)

Directors and the chief executive’s emoluments BEERTHRARMS (&)
(Continued)
Retirement
Salaries and benefit
Directors' other scheme
fees Bonus allowances contributions Total
Hak RIRTE A
EEMe TE4L Ho )2 8L &I A&r
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BETFT BETT
(Note )
(Fi5EC)
For the year ended 30 June ~ HZE 201556830 H
2015 LFE
Executive Directors (Note a)  #17E= (fiita)
Mr. Wong Pak Ming EABEE - 1,000 2,050 - 3,050
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina BRLtT - 500 985 18 1,503
Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond ~ &F#E5%4 - 500 685 18 1,203
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTES (HiEb)
Directors (Note b)
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MEBELRE 130 - - - 130
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRELE 130 - - - 130
Mr. Tang Kai Kui, Terence BRI E 130 - - - 130
390 2,000 3,720 36 6,146
Notes: ffsE -
(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their (a) FTXRBBEZHTEEMNS T ERAEINESE

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.

(b) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

(©) The amounts represent a discretionary bonuses paid to the Directors to

reward their contributions to the Group.

No emoluments of chief executive disclosed as the Group has no
appointment of chief executive during the year ended 30 June 2016

and 2015.
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11. Directors’, Chief Executive's and Employees’ 11. % - THABRREEMS (&)

Emoluments (Continued)
Employees

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, the number of
Directors and employees were as follows:

(=

FEBTLREHFATET BERESHAR
T

2015
20154

Directors 2
Employees BB

The remuneration of the Directors are set out above. The emoluments
of the remaining individuals were as follows:

BEEMERN EXES - SR IATHMET

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other allowances e R EERL 3,310 1,617
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET 2R 36 18
1,635

The emoluments were within the following band: e F TIEEHASET
2015
20154
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 781,500,001 T & 7A ¥ 2,000,000 7T -
HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 P55 1,000,000 7T, 2 4 ¥ 1,500,000 7T 1
Less than HK$1,000,000 K527 # 1,000,000 7T 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the Directors or the five highest paid individuals (including Directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. Neither the chief executive nor
any of the Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 30
June 2016 and 2015.

FRN - AEEHEREFNESIKAEEaTAT
(BREEZEREES) NS - EARSIEEMA
REBERMAREESFH R IELBEE
8- HZE2016F KX2015F6 A30BILFE » 17
ABE M E E R EMERE B S -
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12.

13.

108

Dividends

12.

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 June 2016,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting

period (2015: nil).

Loss per Share

13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Hﬁ/%‘
RRAFREE2016F6 A30R8 I FE I KK
IR EMRALE - B B3RS B R ARIL K
BRI MRS (20156 « &) -
BRER

ARBEE ABESREARREEERTREIA
THURETE -

Loss
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the purpose of basic and diluted
loss per share

18

AHEEREAREEERN
AREHAANEBIEFAER

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

215,258
2015
20154

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share

iy 4=

HEEREA RIERE

ER AN TR

2,493,134,663

2,377,549,378

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for both years for
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted for
the share subdivision completed on 22 July 2015 (note 32(i)).

The computation of the diluted loss per share for the year ended 30
June 2016 and 2015 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding warrants since their exercise would result in a decrease

in loss per share.
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% - KERRKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Computer
improvements equipment vehicles equipment Total
B KB
HEEE &S RE BRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BETT BETT
cost A
At 1July 2014 R2014F7R1H 1171 150 1,301 595 3,217
Additions B 27,71 7,312 416 12,019 47,458
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37)  YeBE i@ A 7 (5 37) 531 105 - 301 937
At 30 June 2015 7R2015F6 A30H 29,413 7,567 1,717 12,915 51,612
Exchange adjustments [EH AR - - (27 - (27)
Additions NE - 14 619 865 1,498
At 30 June 2016 720166 A30H
DEPRECIATION HE
At 1July 2014 HM2014%7A18 1,017 17 391 329 1,854
Provided for the year FRREE 1,929 580 329 1,462 4,300
At 30 June 2015 1201566 A30H 2,946 697 720 1,791 6,154
Exchange adjustments L - - (5) - ®)
Provided for the year EREE 3,045 1,499 391 2,740 7,675
At 30 June 2016 7201656 A30H 13,824
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 30 June 2016 720166 A30AH 23,422 39,259
At 30 June 2015 201566 A30H 26,467 6,870 997 11,124 45,458

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated FitE  BELREEER JILEGEEIRUTE

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: RITE -

Leasehold improvements 10% to 20% HEHRE 10% & 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% G EBERH 20%
Motor vehicles 20% SRE 20%
Computer equipment 20% BIERE 20%
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15.

110

Goodwill 15. &
HK$'000
BT T
COST AR
At 1 July 2014 7201447 818 -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) R i i B o 2 ) i 2 A (P T 37) 181,084
At 30 June 2015 and 2016 20159 201646 A30H 181,084
IMPAIRMENT HAE
At 1July 2014 7201447818 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRHERAFEEE (138,000)
At 30 June 2015 F 201546 A30H (138,000
Impairment loss recognised for the year FNERHRERBE (43,084)

At 30 June 2016

201646 H30H

(181,084)

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 30 June 2016

BREE

201646 A30H

At 30 June 2015

201546 A30H

43,084

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill (before impairment
loss) of HK$181,084,000 (2015: HK$181,084,000) has been
allocated to the groups of CGUs of Chili Group which included Chili
and Chili Platinum acquired by the Group as set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated 6 March 2015
(as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 30 April 2015) (the
“Agreement”) entered into between Green Riches Holdings Limited
("Green Riches”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Ms. Wong Kit Fong, the sister of Mr. Wong Pak Ming (“Mr. Wong"),
the Chairman and substantial shareholders of the Company, as the
vendor for the acquisition of Chili Group at a total consideration of
stated amount of HK$68,000,000, which was satisfied partly by
HK$10,040,000 paid in cash and HK$57,960,000 was satisfied by
issuance of 46,000,000 consideration shares by the Company at the
agreed issuance price of HK$1.26 per consideration share
("Consideration Share”) (the “Acquisition”).
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15. Goodwill (Continued)

At 12 June 2015, the date of completion of the Acquisition, the fair
value of aggregate consideration paid for the Acquisition was
increased from HK$68,000,000 as stated in the Agreement to
HK$206,000,000 (note 37) at the date of completion due to the
unforeseen increase in the quoted market price of the Company’s
shares. The market price of the fixed number of Consideration Shares
paid as part of the consideration of the Acquisition increased from
HK$1.26 (at the date of the Agreement) to HK$4.26 (at the date of
completion of the Acquisition) per Consideration Share. As a result,
the amount of goodwill recognised as of the date of completion of
the Acquisition was HK$181,084,000 instead of the original
estimated amount of HK$43,084,000, which was estimated as of the
date of the Agreement based on the stated consideration amount of
HK$68,000,000.

As at 30 June 2015, the recoverable amount of Chili Group has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
17.02%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations related to the estimation of cash flows which
include budgeted sales and gross margins. The estimation of the
budgeted sales and gross margins is based on past performance of
Chili Group and management’s expectations for the market
development as well as the continuous renewal of the publishing
corporation agreement. The estimated recoverable amount of Chili
Group was below its carrying amount, accordingly the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$138,000,000 in relation to
goodwill arising on the Acquisition and charged to profit or loss
during the year ended 30 June 2015.

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

15. B& (#&)

R2015F6 ANHKEETERZKNEHD - ARA
NERG IR ESSTER 2N AR - EEIK
BEEIHNARERFEHRZBRETI A EE
68,000,0007T & i = T Ak B H & B ¥
206,000,000 7T (F15E37) « ZRHEAMKIEFER
E—HBoMEBEREROHOTELRFRRERS
BHE126 L (R BB AZSRNRERDE
k426 L (MUNEBEETKE B) o Bt - RIS
FEETHNEABRIANFESERER
181,084,0007T 1M 3F R A & 58 & & & &
43,084,000 7T * It JhR % ek B BRAR IR RT B (B
©EB/B % 68,000,000 LM AT SH °

R 2015%F 6 A30H © ChiliEE A a] Yg Bl & 58 TY
REREBEMELAET - ZTEAERAREERE
B ENT RBEERERAF MRS RETE R
KAEIRE17.02% - BB AFHHBE S REE
ARERREI%HEE - FHREETEEANE M
FERBER S REAHEEH - BIEETHEE
REFME - BRI EEERENENHBEDER
ChISEMBARRALEEEBHMBERNE
B UREELREERZMIEL o ChiliE@EA
HETARE S EENEREE - Bt - #%2015
FOA30ALFE  AEERUBSEMEED
P2 HE SRR (B 5 1875 5 138,000,000 7T + W AT A

B o
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15.

112

Goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2016, Management intends to
terminate its publishing cooperation agreement with an independent
third party and cease the publication of a magazine operated by Chili
Platinum under Chili Group due to its unsatisfactory operating results
which was mainly due to decrease in demand for advertising market
for luxury products and services in the PRC arising from the slowdown
of the growth of the PRC economy and conspicuous spending.

As at 30 June 2016, the recoverable amount of Chili Platinum has
been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations, determined by the cost approach. The recoverable
amount of Chili has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and a discount rate of 12.40% (2015: 13.14%). Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
(2015: 3%) growth rate. The estimation of the budgeted sales and
gross margins is based on past performance of Chili and
Management'’s expectations for the market development.

Management has taken the recoverable amounts of Chili Platinum
and Chili into consideration for the purpose of impairment
assessment of Chili Group. The estimated recoverable amount of
Chili Group was below its carrying amount, accordingly the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$43,084,000 in relation to
goodwill and charged to profit or loss during the year ended 30 June
2016.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group enters into a
termination agreement with the independent third party regarding
the publishing cooperation agreement and ceases the publication of
a magazine operated by Chili Platinum.
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MR2016F6 A30H  HEASN A NE&EIR
BATFERL S KA EERKAVEETE © Chil
KUl 2 BB IR R G AE BT EAE T © &t
BEIAFE AR E IR E 4 B TR BOR & B H
K938 & i = 78 B LA J2 BE 3R ¥ 12.40% (20154 -
13.14%) - BB AF MR @R E ) E AR T
£ E3% 015 : 3%)#HE - HFHEEELE
FEROEEDRBEChliNBTRRAREEEE M
BRROEEMIEL -

FLChili SEBHETRENGN  EEECHLERE
He R Chili®yaJ ik £ 58 o Chili & B 897 W
EeREAERAME  BEitt - #E2016F6 530
HEFE AXBEREEERAEBESE
43,084,000 JLIF AT A A ©

REE2016F6 A30HIEFE 2% KEHE
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16. Intangible Assets 16. B EE
Publishing
cooperation
Brand agreement Total
g HRESFERE e
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT T
COST A
At 1July 2014 MW2014F7 A1 H - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) IR BB B A ) (B9 5E37) 5,600 31,900 37,500
At 30 June 2015 and 2016 R2015F &% 201646 A30H 5,600 31,900 37,500
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R B RRE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1July 2014 M2014%€7 /18 - - -
Provided for the year FNEE - 232 232
At 30 June 2015 M2015F6 H30H - 232 232
Provided for the year FNEE - 11,154 11,154
Impairment loss recognised for the year  ZN4F [E R HY R (E E5 18 - 20,514 20,514

At 30 June 2016 201646 H30H 31,900
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRE{E
At 30 June 2016 7201646 H30H

At 30 June 2015

®20154F6 A30H

5,600

31,668 37,268

The intangible assets are allocated to the CGU of Chili Group EBIEAED SR ERNEBREDN Chili EE/IR
TELABMN MERASELBEUDIRIES M

SR R R EDRIBET 25

acquired by the Group which is presented under “Advertising,
marketing and publication” reporting segment.
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16.

114

Intangible Assets (Continued)
Brand

The brand name is associated to the advertising and promotion
services operated by Chili and it is treated as having indefinite useful
life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows to the
Group indefinitely. Therefore, it is not amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite.

As at 30 June 2016, the recoverable amount of Chili has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
12.40% (2015: 13.14%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2015: 3%) growth rate. The
estimation of the budgeted sales and gross margins is based on past
performance of Chili and management'’s expectations for the market
development.

Publishing cooperation agreement

Chili Platinum entered into a publishing cooperation agreement that
used to publish the magazine, namely “Platinum of UnionPay” for a
term of four years which can be renewed if not objected by the
parties entered into the publishing cooperation agreement.
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the publishing
cooperation agreement using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of 2.86 years.

As at 30 June 2015, the impairment review was determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period and a discount rate of 17.02%. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. The
estimation of the budgeted sales and gross margins is based on past
performance of Chili Platinum and management’s expectations for
the market development as well as the continuous renewal of the
publishing cooperation agreement.

As at 30 June 2016, Management intends to terminate its publishing
cooperation agreement and cease the publication of a magazine
operated by Chili Platinum. The recoverable amount of Chili Platinum
has been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations, determined by the cost approach. Accordingly, the
Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$20,514,000 in relation
to intangible asset and charged to profit or loss.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group enters into a
termination agreement with the independent third party regarding
the publishing cooperation agreement and ceases the publication of
a magazine operated by Chili Platinum.
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BRAEEChlIZENES RERRGERM - I
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WREREEBAIMEAFHY - Ft - ETETMN
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201646 A30H © Chili#) 7] U @ £ 58 1R 1% (&
REBEFEEETE - Zit AT RBREEER
ERBERTEERE R FHMIR SR 2 188 A &L
IR 12.40% (20154F : 13.14%) BB A F
ReERENFABTEEREI% (2015F  3%)
HH - FERMHEEREFNENGE TIRE Chili 6
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H iR & 1F 5

BEASF L HRAFRZE - AHRE SRR
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17. Interest in an Associate

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

17. RA—REBEQATNER

2016 2015

2016 2015 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Cost of unlisted investment in an associate A —EHEE R E AR LR B R AR 54,000 54,000
Share of post-acquisition (loss) profit and other FE(EUREE 1% (B518) % A K

comprehensive (expense) income HEma2mE () A ((KE)] 92

53,887 54,092

On 22 November 2013, the Group had completed the acquisition of
Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited (“JDH") at a consideration of
HK$54,000,000. The Group is able to exercise significant influence
over JDH because it has power to appoint 2 out of 5 directors of the
associate under the Articles of Association of JDH. Therefore, JDH is
accounted for as an associate of the Group.

JDH is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability and its subsidiaries (collectively known as “JDH
Group”), are principally engaged in comic publication and owns the
intellectual property rights of a database of comic stories and comic
heroes. Management anticipates that the Group would make use of
the intellectual property rights of the associate (including but not
limited to the comic stories and comic characters) that the Group
considers they are suitable for reproduction as films.

The details of the Group's associate at 30 June 2016 and 2015 are as
follows:

Proportion

Place of Principal of ownership

incorporation/ place of interest held
Name of associate registration  business by the Group

B EEEE
BENTER TR TEEXNY FrERRER LA

Jade Dynasty Holdings BVI Hong Kong
Limited
EHBERERAF RBRAES TA

N EE D R2013F11 228 AR BB K
54,000,000 L5E A g E 28R AR A E ([ X
W) c AEEYHEEHEEATE SN AAE
BETEHNESEREUGEZIHE QA5
UEEFH2M - Fitt - EEHARINEAEE

CE A NCTIE

FEVR - HERBRERZESEMARLNRER
RBERAR - ZRRREMB AR (Gl [ 25
SEDIERFEEHT UWHBEERFRE
EREAMBEBOMBERE BEEEMS K
SEBERATEERRERERREZNEER
AHMBER(BERETRNEEREREELH
A®) °

BEAEEBRZQE20164F %2015 6 A 30
HWEFBAT :

Proportion of
voting rights

held by the Group  Principal activities

REEFE

BREREHLH TEER
2015

20154

40% Comic publication and owns the
intellectual property rights of a data
base of comic stories and comic heroes

40% BERIT UHBEENER
BELEANERENASER
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17. Interest in an Associate (Continued) 17. R—EBE QAT NER (&)
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these Bt AR E AR ERZSRE B HRERT
consolidated financial statements. R -
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's TXEY A EE S R RRIBEE B B8RS %R
associate is set out below and were prepared in accordance with WM HEERBE -
HKFRSs.
JDH Group FEHEE
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE 77,766 82,580
Current assets MENVEE 24,566 21,663
Current liabilities B A E (18,491) (19,890)
Net assets BEFE 83,841 84,353
Net assets attributable to the Group NEBELEEZE 33,536 33,741
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
HZ2016 F EE-EVIGEES
6 H30H 6 A30H
IEFEE IFEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue Wzs 23,979 20,497
Loss for the year attributable to owners BE NP A FEEER
of the associate (11,370)
Group's share of loss AEEEGEE (4,548)
Other comprehensive income for the year FERNEAM R EWA 5
Group's share of other comprehensive income AEEEEEMEEEA 2
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17. Interest in an Associate (Continued) 17. RA—REBE QAT LS (8)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB RS E R E BN AR S B SRR MR AU P B
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the BNrER R REEN R

consolidated financial statements:

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Net assets of JDH Group FEHEENEEFE 83,841 84,353
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in -~ NEBR £ LA EEFTA RS LD
JDH Group 40% 40%
33,536 33,741
Goodwill EES 20,351 20,351
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEEREEHEEEENREE
JDH Group 54,092
18. Interest in a Joint Venture 18. R—EEeELENER
2016
2016
HK$'000
BT
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint venture R—A A EENR ETIRERAR 52,079
Share of post-acquisition loss and other comprehensive MR EEEEEREMEEAY
expense (4,575)
47,504
On 8 June 2015, Pegasus Motion Pictures (Hong Kong) Limited H2015%F6 A8H  AARIHEEETEWE AT
(“PMPHKL"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, AKEBEEHR(FEBHE)ARANIXEEESE
Harmonious Entertainment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“HES") and Bounty 7 1) ~ Harmonious Entertainment (Shanghai) Co.,
Yoohanhwesa (“BY") entered into a Co-Production and Co-Financing Ltd (THES|) % Bounty Yoohanhwesa ([BY ) 5T 32
Agreement to co-produce and co-finance a film production namely A RER AR E S - IS BER LR
“Bounty Hunters”. The production budget of the film was BE—HELBIESBEAI B B
KRW18,375,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$130 million). H RUVEL & /4 18,375,000,000 8 B (HHE N 4078

¥130E &) °
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18. Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued)

Bounty Productions Limited (“BPL") (a limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong) has been set up solely for the film production. The
Group, HES and BY held 40.00%, 25.51% and 34.49% equity
interest in BPL respectively. The board of directors of BPL, the
governing body which directs the relevant activities that significantly
affects the returns of BPL, consists of three directors of which the
Group, HES and BY can appoint one director each to the board of
directors of BPL. The relevant activities required to be approved
unanimously by all these three directors. Therefore, BPL is jointly
controlled by the Group, HES and BY. As the joint arrangement does
not result in either parties having rights to assets and obligations to
liabilities of BPL, it is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

The details of the Group’s joint venture at 30 June 2016 and 2015
are as follows:

Proportion

Place of Principal of ownership

incorporation/ place of interest held

Name of joint venture  registration  business by the Group
TMAL ER rEEBEN
RELENER e TEERNH gLy Sl
Bounty Productions Hong Kong PRC
Limited
BEeBEBRAA 90 HE

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint
venture is set out below and were prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.
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ehEpEs (F)

EeREBRAR(ES]  REBIMA LA
ERARNEKY - BEMEAETFRIE - AEMH
HES & BY % Bl ¥ 5 40.00% * 25.51% 5 34.49%
EHE - EeESFTEHETRTEATZEESERD
AESMNRERME) MH3BEEMAMK - HP A%
“HESKBYRIZEBEZA—REENMAESCES
g HEERALZE-REE —BuUlLE -
I BEEmAREE - HES M BY HLREFEH| - A
ALl TSR AN —TREHEcNEER
FRBESER  WESARALAEENAERE -

18. A—E4&

NEFMESLPER2016F 201556 A30H
HIFEBIT ¢

Proportion of

voting rights
held by the Group
AEEBEN
SR
2016
2016 %

Principal activities

TEER
2015
20154

33.33% - Film production and distribution

33.33% - BYEERBITLMR
ZEGAMBREANBEETEREISEALR -

BFEAEEAECENMBERNRBORERE
MBS ERRE) ST o
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18. Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued) 18. R—EEELENELE (&)
BPL ES
2016
2016
HK$’'000
FBMET T
Current assets MBEE 223,451
Current liabilities mEEE (104,690)
Net assets BEFE 118,761
Net assets attributable to the Group AEEEGEEEFE 47,504
Year ended
30 June 2016
HZE2016 5
6H30BHIEFE
HK$'000
M T 5T
Revenue e

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the joint venture & &% A AEGFEEEIE

Group's share of loss NEBEEILEE
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEEAY
Group's share of other comprehensive expense AEBEEEEMEEmTAY
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LA 2 REES M BRERNER IR —
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the MeghERR REEHE
consolidated financial statements:
2016
2016 F
HK$'000
BT
Net assets of BPL EeEETE 118,761
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in BPL KNEBPE ©FTEEE L) 40%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in BPL AEBRESER 2 FEHEE 47,504
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20.
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Prepayment to an Artiste 19. EERIE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Non-current portion JEBNHRES 2> 12,000 18,000
Current portion BNERER > 12,000 12,000
24,000 30,000
During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group entered into a HZE2010F6 8300 IFEE - &NE .;ﬁg—%;@
contract with an artiste for his participation in nine of the Group’s EESEAREFEM NI ELRIETTIEY
film productions at a total contract fee of HK$48,000,000 with a A %8 A BB 148,000,000 7T A 4 HIH 2010
contract term of six years from 2010 to 2016. In 2014, the contract FEZE0I6E B NE - 2014F  EHHTFTILEE
term was mutually agreed to be extended to eight years from 2010 A#EL S BH2010FEE 2018 F A H )\ 4F o
to 2018.
Management anticipates that the artiste would participate in one to TIREERL ZREESFELHEREFEN—EM
two film productions of the Group each year and therefore, based on HREEEUE - Bt BIBEAS YT ERAZEESLNA
the service fee schedule of the artiste for each film stated in the SGEHEEHREERE  R2016E6 8308 @ &
contract, an amount of HK$12,000,000 (2015: HK$12,000,000) was 28 A5 12,000,000 71 (2015 £F ¢ #5# 12,000,000
classified as current assets and the remaining carrying amount of T)HREHEARSEE A NEBREBK
HK$12,000,000 (2015: HK$18,000,000) was classified as non-current 12,000,000 7T (2015 4F : & #5 18,000,000 7t ) Bl 9>
assets as at 30 June 2016. EAIERIHEE -
During the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015, the artiste had HZE2016FEN2015FE6 B30BIFEE > ZE 8
participated one film production for the Group each year. SHEDLHEAEFN—HBEZRE -
Available-For-Sale Investment 20. JHEERE

On 16 April 2014, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party, for the investment in an animation
production project held by an entity incorporated in Hong Kong, with
an amount of HK$4,056,000 as capital injection which entitled to
30% profit sharing in the project upon completion. Based on the
terms of the agreement, the Group is entitled to have the profit
sharing from the distribution of animation rights based on the
percentage of capital invested into the animation production project.
The animation production was originally expected to be completed in
April 2017. On 15 April 2016, the Group and the independent third
party agreed in writing to extend the completion date of the
animation production project to April 2018. Therefore, it is classified
as non-current assets.
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20. Available-For-Sale Investment (Continued) 20. AHHERE (&)
It is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting HREENAFEGFTEHENET - ALt AR
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is not EFERRATENTEAEAE - FIARBRESR
ascertain that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that KABBETE - EEERAERESHARALZE
its fair value cannot be measured reliably. In the opinion of FhE B EIE B I ETEZRE -
Management, no impairment was identified on this investment in
animation production project at the end of the reporting period.
Film Rights and Film Production in Progress  21. E¥IRiERBEDEE
Film
production
Film rights in progress
B IR BERER
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
cosT A
At 1 July 2014 R201467A81H 365,327 56,002
Additions (note i) WE (M) 159 180,058
Transfer i % 54,307 (54,307)
At 30 June 2015 201546 A30H 419,793 181,753
Exchange adjustments PE 5% - (981)
Additions (note i) WNE (FED 281 84,241
Transfer i 3¢ 167,278 (167,278)
At 30 June 2016 7201646 A 30 H 587,352 97,735
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Sty
At 1 July 2014 R2014F7 81H 339,970 -
Charged for the year FAZH 72,892 -
At 30 June 2015 $20154F 6 A 30 H 412,862 -
Exchange adjustments PE 3 FH 2 - (249)
Charged for the year FRH 171,315 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year (note ii) FANERBVREETE (M FEi) - 17,934

At 30 June 2016

2016456 H30H

584,177 17,685

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 30 June 2016

AREE
R 2016%6 A30H

3,175 80,050

At 30 June 2015

720156 A30H

6,931 181,753
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21. Film Rights and Film Production in Progress
(Continued)

122

Notes:

U]

(i)

The additions in film production in progress for the current year of
HK$294,000 (2015: HK$8,282,000) and the carrying amounts of nil (2015:
HK$20,612,000) as at 30 June 2016 represented the Group's share of film
production in progress relating to film rights which are jointly controlled by
the Group and independent third parties in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Included in an impairment loss recognised for the year is an impairment loss
on a TV series production in progress amounting to HK$14,934,000. On 11
April 2014, the Group entered into a contract with an independent third
party in the PRC for the TV series production. The TV series will be jointly
controlled by the Group and the independent third party upon completion
of the production. As of 30 June 2016, the Group in total paid
RMB12,445,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,934,000) (2015:
RMB12,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,372,000)) for the
production, in which the production is still in progress. Management is in a
view that the quality of the production in progress produced by the
independent third party is not satisfactory. Management intends to
terminate the contract with the independent third party and obtain the
ownership of the TV series production in progress. Given that the
unsatisfactory quality of the production in progress and the uncertain future
returns of the TV series, the Directors are of opinion that the carrying
amount of the production in progress of HK$14,934,000 should be fully
impaired.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group entered into a
termination agreement with the independent third party. The Group agrees
to pay RMB380,000 to the independent third party to terminate the contract
and obtain the ownership of the TV series production in progress.

The remaining portion of an impairment loss of HK$3,000,000 represented
an impairment loss on the pre-production costs for a film production in
progress. During the year ended 30 June 2016, Management is in a view
that the expected return for the film production in progress should be loss
making and the Group ceased the production on those film production in
progress. The Directors are of opinion that the carrying amount of the film
production in progress of HK$3,000,000 should be fully impaired.
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ANE[Z 294,000 7T (2015 4F « ## 8,282,000 7T)
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BYHEMRE -
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REIBERB AR ERREPABTZEET
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ZHEIMEIEHE c AEEREMBYLE= XM
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22. Investments in Film/Drama Production

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

22. REEY BB E

Investments at amortised cost
— film (note i) — B (D
— animations (note ii) — & (EEi

— TV programme (note iii)

REHERASIR 2 IRE

— EREE (MEEii)

2016 2015
2016 2015 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
19,398 19,398
11,053 6,132
2,950 -
33,401 25,530

The amount represents investments in an international and PRC
production houses for co-financing of the production of film, TV
programme and animations.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group has four (2015: two)
agreements with production houses, which are independent third
parties, at a total contract amounts of HK$33,401,000 (2015:
HK$25,530,000). The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements entered into between the Group and the production
houses whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the
distribution of the related film/TV programme/animations
productions.

Notes:

(i) Based on the terms of the agreement signed by Pegasus Motion Pictures
Investment Limited (“PMPIL"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, with Inversion Productions Limited (“Inversion”) (previously
known as TNC Productions Limited), an amount of US$2,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$19,398,000) (2015: US$2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$19,398,000))
was invested and would be fully repaid to PMPIL upon the commencement
of principal photography of the film tentatively scheduled to take place in
August 2013 or upon the close of bank financing tentatively scheduled to
take place before November 2013, whichever occurs earlier. In addition,
PMPIL is entitled to a return of 20% of the investment amount upon the
theatrical release of the relevant film in the United States of America
tentatively scheduled to take place in 2014 and a certain percentage of the
profit to be derived from the release of the film worldwide in any media and
in any format. As a security, Inversion created a pledge in favor of PMPIL for
another international film to be launched by Inversion, which should be
exercisable in the event that the principal photography of the film did not
commence by 30 November 2013 or if the production of the film was
abandoned, PMPIL was entitled to exercise its right prior to 31 December
2013.

&R A — RBIFRSUER R R B REA R
B UREY  EREHERBENRUEARLE -

HZE2016F6 A30HIEFE  AEFEBERER
A(BABYE=7)FI LM% (20154 : MH)
W% - AH4ELEEAB133,401,0007T (20154 ¢
75 25,530,00070) - BB EZT ANEE HBE
NEIFMEIM MR IRZEMNRE - A - AXEEEB
EEZEHBEY BEEE SEREEITHE
2 Fg o

B -

(i) REARNRAMEZEWNBARASELREERA
Al ([REEFA |) Einversion Productions Limited
(['nversion |) (BT#8TNC Productions Limited) %% 5
HIHRIER  REFIRRAK(TE2013F8 A
M) EHRITREH L (EE2013F 11 A A1) & (A
BRERAE) —F£2500000ET(HHERBE
19,398,0007T) (20154 : 2,500,000 % T (& HB
#19,398,0007T) ) ME KR ES K BHERTXRSE
BERE - N REZEFEENRAERHER
G (ETE2014F)%  KEEXREABZARE
SE20% MBI - LA RS AR 2 BRUAE () 588 DAAE
MERNBETEENSTE DL EF o Inversion ¥
Inversion i HE S —HEBEL R BEUKXEEY
BB BZm AWERIERIEIRG - ARER AR Z
EEMERELEN 2013411 A30HATREFET
- BAMZEYHNREREE  ARFEXRES
R 201312 A 31 BHAT/TEEAER -
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22.

124

Investments in Film/Drama Production
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

U]

(Continued)

Pursuant to an announcement of the Company dated 13 September 2013,
PMPIL and Inversion agreed in writing to extend the date for Inversion to
start principal photography of the film to 30 April 2014. As a result, the date
before which PMPIL could exercise its right to seek full repayment under the
agreement has been extended to 31 May 2014. In addition, in the event that
the principal photography of the film did not commence by 30 April 2014 or
if the production of the film was abandoned, PMPIL was entitled to exercise
its rights prior to 31 May 2014 to seek full recoupment from another
international film as additional security.

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 28 January 2014
and 29 August 2014, PMPIL and Inversion agreed in writing to further
extend the date for Inversion to start principal photography and worldwide
theatrical distribution of the film to on or before 30 April 2015 and in the
second half of 2016, respectively. Due to the extension of time, the amount
of the agreed fully repayment and the agreed amount of return to which
PMPIL were entitled have also been increased from 20% to 23%. Save for
the amendments have been made and disclosed above, all the other terms
and conditions of the agreements, including but not limited to a pledge of
security that created by Inversion in favour of PMPIL over the rights of the
film, have remained unchanged and continue in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 30 April 2015, PMPIL
and Inversion agreed in writing to further extend the date for Inversion to
start principal photography of the film from on or before 30 April 2015 to
31 October 2015 without a further delay in world theatrical distribution. In
addition, due to the extension of time, the agreed amount of priority return
to which PMPIL was entitled upon the theatrical release of the film in the
United States of America has also been increased. Besides, the Company has
been notified by Inversion that the director, producers, production designers
and visual effect supervisor of the film have been confirmed and the first
location for shooting was expected to be in New Zealand. The film was in
the pre-production stage which involves, among others, casting, formulation
of the filming schedule, refinement of the script and location scouting and
the principal photography and worldwide theatrical distribution of the film
were tentatively scheduled to take place on or before September 2015 and
in the second half of 2016, respectively.

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 7 December 2015,
PMPIL and Inversion agreed in writing to further extend the date for
Inversion to start principal photography of the film from on or before 31
October 2015 to 30 June 2016. In addition, due to the extension of time,
the agreed amount of recoupment to which PMPIL was entitled upon the
commencement of principal photography of the film or upon the close of
bank financing, whichever is earlier, has also been increased. The principal
photography and worldwide theatrical distribution of the film were
rescheduled to take place tentatively on or before 30 June 2016 and in the
first half of 2017 respectively.
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22. Investments in Film/Drama Production
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

U]

(i)

(i)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 20 May 2016, PMPIL
and Inversion agreed in writing to further extend the date for Inversion to
start principal photography of the film from on or before 30 June 2016 to
30 September 2016. In addition, due to the extension of time, the agreed
amount of recoupment to which PMPIL was entitled upon the
commencement of principal photography of the film or upon the close of
bank financing, whichever is earlier, has also been increased. Besides, the
Company has been notified that Travis Fimmel, who starred in the TV series
“Vikings” and the movie to be released named “Warcraft”, has joined the
main cast of the film. The principal photography and worldwide theatrical
distribution of the film are rescheduled to take place tentatively on or before
30 September 2016 and in the second half of 2017 respectively.

As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, the film has not yet started its principal
photography.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, based on the terms of the agreement
signed by b K55, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
an amount of RMB4,867,000 (equivalent to HK$5,743,000) was invested
and would be fully repaid to 52X on 8 April 2016. In addition, 3b 7K
5 was entitled to a minimum rate of return at 10% per annum on the
principal amount and share of profit generated from the distribution of the
related animation production based on the percentage of capital invested
into the production of animation production.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2016, an investment cost of
approximately RMB4,867,000 (equivalent to HK$5,743,000) and investment
income of RMB487,000 (equivalent to HK$591,000) was received by the
Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, based on the terms of the agreement
signed by b K55, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
an amount of RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to HK$5,310,000) was invested
and will be fully repaid to JE K55 on 15 July 2016. In addition, JE =K
is entitled to a minimum rate of return at 10% per annum on the principal
amount and share of profit generated from the distribution of the related
animation production based on the percentage of capital invested into the
production of animation production.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2016, an investment income of
RMB450,000 (equivalent to HK$567,000) was received by the Group. In
addition, 4t X5 and independent third party agreed in writing to extend
the date of principal repayment from 15 July 2016 to 15 July 2017. Besides,
due to the extension of time, the minimum rate of return to which 3t 2K 55
is entitled has also been increased from 10% to 20%.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, based on the terms of the agreement
signed by Star Pictures Entertainment (Hong Kong) Limited (“Star Pictures
HK"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, an amount of
RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$2,950,000) was invested and will be fully
repaid to Star Pictures HK on 9 December 2016. In addition, Star Pictures HK
is entitled to a minimum rate of return at 10% per annum on the principal
amount and share of profit generated from the distribution of the related
animation production based on the percentage of capital invested into the
production of film production.
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2016459 A30H o toh - ARRRITEE - REZEY
MEBJEFABRERBRITRER L% (UREEEER
) REEVREARESHBERERBNEGR
AN o LA - AR F BN Travis Fimmel (ES&ER
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22,

23.

126

Investments in Film/Drama Production 22. REEY HERE (&)
(Continued)
Since the initial investments are expected to be recovered by the ARTEHAREE BN —ERKEVIRRE - #5
Group within one year, the amount of HK$33,401,000 (2015: 33,401,000 JTHY 58 (2015 4F : & # 25,530,000
HK$25,530,000) is classified as current assets at 30 June 2016. TN 2016456 A30 BNEAREEE -
The investments in film/drama production contain embedded KBEBEY HEEERFERTE Y EZ Y BEIE
derivatives which are not closely related to the host contract. The WRAXNTELR - REEF BB ZIENES
debt components of the investments in film/drama production are B T S ERENBEN AT E - RYISHE
measured at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition. At REFK2016F6 A30H  RAXSTET AR
initial recognition and 30 June 2016, the fair value of embedded FERREBT RE
derivatives is considered insignificant.
The Group’s investments in film/drama production that are not $‘§Ij’[;¢tﬂﬁ?§‘§@:’f B EERHERNR
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group BER/BBEEENT :
entities are as follows:
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
RMB AR 2,950 -
usD EVi 19,398 19,398
Inventories 23. 78
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Raw materials and consumable R KRB FE SR 160 171
Finished goods Bk M 641 760
Total st 801 931
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24. Trade and Other Receivables 24. ES R HMEWKIE

The aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of allowance REEER  NEBE S EKTIE (KNG RE
for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date, which approximates BE ) RRZEQH(AE A2 WaEREH)
the respective revenue recognition dates at the end of the reporting HIEEBR DT T -

period is as follows:

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Trade receivables: B 5 FEWGRIA -

0-30 days 0&30H 23,551 1,983
31-60 days 31260H 5,757 3,479
61-90 days 61290H 1
91-180 days 91£2180H 98
181-365 days 1812365 H 458
Over 365 days @365 H -
29,343 6,019
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HtheiE ~ e KB RE 5,707 6,454

Other deposits and prepayments for cinema B EBHE MRS RIEFFIE
operation 666 408
35,716 12,881

Generally, with the exception of post-production customers, who are
generally granted credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days, no credit
period is granted to the Group’s customers. Distribution and licensing
fee from distributors in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas countries
are normally settled upon delivery of film negatives to them. On a
case-by-case basis, one to two months of credit period may be
granted to its customers with good repayment history.

These trade receivables relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good repayment history. Included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$38,000 (2015: HK$557,000) as at 30 June 2016 which are past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral or credit
enhancements over these balances.

BRiRHBERP —RERNFI0E60BHEE
Hoh REE-RETBRAEFTFPEOEMNESR
He BUEE  PRMEINEREBETENETR
BITRERFIEABERARERXNEZIEMN
ERRGEE  AKETREREEQABRIFE
REENEPEE—EMEAMNEER -

ZEE S EWGIAR S £ BE R IR 8
VEFBEH - ASEEBEZEBNBESRBEER
201646 730 A AR 42 (B8 % 38,0007 (20154F
7 557,000 70) R FEUARE - ¥R HHEIE B A
BAREELER TR ERIERE - NEEY
WL SRR TR R S EUE AR s
i
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24. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

24. B 5 K HAibEWERIEA ()
EAIREL RREN E SRR FIAN R DT

2016 2015

2016 & 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290 H
91-180 days 91& 180 H
181-365 days 1812 365H
Over 365 days 88365 H

458

557

Management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there have not been a significant change
in credit risk and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Group's trade and other receivables that are not denominated in
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows:

ERERA BRNEERRILEEANEEHHER
RER BB E - MBARZSERTIRAE
B -

AEBENAEEEEREEEUINEEITED
B 5 R EABRFIENT

2016 2015

2016 & 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

RMB AR
usD e

1,711
646
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Rental Deposits

Cinema City (Langham Place) Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, had entered into a lease agreement on
27 December 2013 to rent a cinema situated in Langham Place (“the
Lease Premises”), a prime location in Hong Kong and to take the
cinema operation for a term of ten years commencing on 23 July
2014 and expiring on 22 July 2024 (the “Lease”). Based on the terms
of the Lease, the Company is obliged to pay a deposit in a sum
equivalent to the aggregate of three months’ base rent for the tenth
year, three months’ management charges for the first year, three
months’ promotional levy for the first year and one quarter’s
government rates in respect of the Lease Premises. The operation of
cinema and related operations in the cinema could provide a platform
for the development of the film distribution business of the Group.

Pledged Bank Deposits

At 30 June 2016, the amounts represent bank deposits of
HK$31,165,000 (2015: HK$31,066,000) in which an amount of
HK$30,507,000 (2015: HK$30,414,000) pledged to a bank to secure
short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and the remaining
amount of HK$658,000 (2015: HK$652,000) pledged to a bank to
secure for the 4Dx’s equipment rental fees payable to a supplier of
4Dx equipment for the Group’s operation in the Lease Premises in
accordance with the 4Dx Equipment Rental Agreement dated on 20
August 2014. The bank deposits are carried interests at a fixed rate
of 0.10%-0.30% (2015: 0.70%—0.80%) per annum and they will be
matured on 5 July 2016 and 5 July 2016 (2015: 2 July 2015 and 29
December 2015), respectively.

The Group's pledged bank deposits that are not denominated in the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows:

25.

26.

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

HEEE

R2013F 12 A27H - ARREEZEWB AR
B (%) BR AR &R - E
RESZESHBRAZNER ((HEWE]) ki
FERiBE B2014F7 A23 B E2024F7
A22AEAH+E(THE]D - BEREKHR K
AREFRBEMESFiRE  SEEENHEHE
+TEHN=Z@MAELAHE F—FN=AAEE
B FE-FM-EAEEHBUL —EZEMNK
FT 22 82 F0 o S20T O IE 1E R 520w FO AR B 22 75 AT A
AASEBEEITEBNEERRHRTES -

CEFRTER

R 2016496 A30H @ ZFIEIERIEITIEIAEIT
FERUE® 31,165,000 7T (20154 « 7 31,066,000
JT )+ H R 5 #30,507,0007T (20154 « & 1
30,414,00070) A FASE M EHRITRHEDN
I - 6% B8 B #658,000 70 (20154F : B &
652,0007T) Bl A MR TR A S E RS AR 1% B 23
201448 A20 B ADx R BHERBEARER
RERTHEYE L ENIDGRE MMM ER
ADX R B E BRI - ZFRITHFIIZEEF
F=0.10% % 0.30% (20154 : 0.70% = 0.80%)
e Wi RIR201647 A5H KX 201647 A
5H (20154 : 201547 A2H 2015412 A298)
EI|HE o

AEBENEHEEEERODEEE N ERETE
WEEMRITERAOT

usb

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
658 652

RESZEXERERAR ~201516F% 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e PR AR MT aE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

27. Bank Balances and Cash 27. BITEHRKRES

Bank balances and cash of the Group carry interest at market rates REBRITEH LRSI T HEFEREE -
which are as follows:

2016 2015
2016 20154

Interest rate per annum R = (VOREZR Y EIEZ8 0.01% to 0.35%
NP7 {IP79 0.01% £ 0.35%

The Group's bank balances and cash that are not denominated in the AEEEASEEREEEAINEEER
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows: RITHEMRIIRSWT

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
AUD BT 15 15
RMB AR 1,308 16,152
usb ET 9,457 994
EUR BT 5 23
HK$ B 1,352 1,330
SGD o 21 -
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28. Trade and Other Payables/Receipts in

Advance

e M BHmRNE
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28. B 5 R HbREN FIH ALK

2016 2015

2016 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Trade payables B S e FRIA 19,496 17,058
Other payables and accruals HAb /I R ETER 24,424 26,602
Deposits received (note 1) BYEE (ME1) 1,662 1,848
45,582 45,508

Receipts in advance (note 2) TEYCRIE (FEE2) 69,037 170,683

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 to 90 days.
The aging analysis of trade payables presented is based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period. The following is analysis of

REEMNFEYEEHAG0EIWR - FTE25E
SIENZFRIENRR DT ERRE RS
Hlo AEBRREBANE S EMFIBED TN

the Group's trade payables at the end of the reporting period: K
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within 60 days 60 HA 19,496 17,058
Notes: FHEE -
(1) Deposits received represent deposits received from a cinema circuit operator (1) BURESERBEEBSERMN —HEZERE

in Hong Kong for a film to be theatrical release in Hong Kong and from
sponsor for film production.

(2) Receipts in advance represents the instalments of contribution from the PRC
co-producers for film production in progress and advances of distribution
and licensing income received from distributors prior to theatrical release
and delivery of film negatives of HK$69,037,000 (2015: HK$170,683,000)
as at 30 June 2016.

The Group's trade and other payables that are not denominated in
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows:

BETRELHRERARE E?Z%WE’J%E)J% °

) TEUW R TEIE R 2016 F6 A30H » FEIBAEAER
SERERELH D B E R FBT M A B Mg
1T BT R B AT HE(E P R AT RN FE IR TE R R A
B ¥ MK A 7B %69,037,000 T (20154 : B #
170,683,000 7T) ©

AEBURBESEERNEEENIINEEED
Bar

B 5 MEAMER R

usD ETT

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
1,026 242
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29.

30.

31.

32.

132

Amounts Due to Related Companies 29. BB A RIFIE
Members of the key management of the Group have controlling REBTEEEERERE XS AT IR
interest over the related companies. R o
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ESIE AR B RBRENREE
Amount Due From/(To) Non-Controlling 30. FEYR(FEAT) IR ERRIE
Interest
The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. BERAFIEAEIER - 2B RERENRESE -
Amount Due to a Joint Venture 31. B —EEaEbERE
The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. BB AEEE 28 NERENRES -
Share Capital 32. B
Number of Share
shares capital
BB EE R
HK$'000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 (2015:HK$0.01) FAXEE A 0.0025 7T (2015 £ -
each: VE#£0.0170) B9 E @Ak
Authorised: EE
At 1 July 2014, 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 MR2014F7H1H ~20159F6 A30H
20157/ 1H 8,000,000,000 80,000

Effect of share subdivision (note i)

B Al 28 (M)

24,000,000,000 -

At 30 June 2016

M 201646 A30H

32,000,000,000 80,000

Issued and fully paid:

EBRITRAE:

At 1 July 2014 R201467A81H 480,000,000 4,800
Issue of new shares (note ii) BATHAR M (BT ) 50,000,000 500
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants RITERIRAE BB EITIRD 29,000,000 290
Shares repurchased and cancelled B e R ER R (1,000,000) (10)
Issue of consideration shares (note iii) ITREMR D (B sEii) 46,000,000 460
At 30 June 2015 $ 201546 A 30 H 604,000,000 6,040
Effect of share subdivision (note i) IR FF AR s 2 (M i) 1,812,000,000 -
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants RITERIRRE R B 2T D 107,768,239 269

At 30 June 2016

M 201646 A30H

2,523,768,239 6,309
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32. Share Capital (Continued)

Notes:

@

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 21
July 2015, a share subdivision was approved and effective from 22 July
2015, each of the existing issued and unissued ordinary shares of the
Company of par value of HK$0.01 subdivided into four subdivided ordinary
shares of the Company of par value of HK$0.0025 each (the “Share
Subdivision”). The Share Subdivision was duly passed by the shareholders of
the Company by way on poll at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 21 July 2015. The Share Subdivision was effective on 22
July 2015.

On 12 September 2014, the Company issued 50,000,000 new shares at a
price of HK$1.26 per share. The aggregate gross proceeds and net proceeds
from the issuance of new shares are approximately HK$63,000,000 and
HK$60,000,000, respectively.

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued 46,000,000 new shares as part of
consideration paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries. Details are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company repurchased its
own shares through the Stock Exchange as follows:

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

32. BRA(48)

o

@)

(ii)

(iii)

BIEARBRERAARF2015F7 A21 ABRITZ
HEFRIAS L@B EEREE - RODIFACEL
FEIE 201547 A22 BRAR - AR RIEREES
¥0.01 T2 B A B BT RARBITE BRI AU
BREEERE0.0025 T 2 FF A @R (IR IFAR])
D IFARR AR E 20157 A 21 ART 2 REEF
AE LEARAFBRREALBEIRE A EX BB -
D IFAHE 201567 422 ARBAER -

R2014F9 A 128 » RARIZERENE 1.26 THE
%17 50,000,000 A& # AZ 19 » ZE1THARD A &TFT
BRERLAERMERBFEIANNHABE
63,000,000 7T &2 7% % 60,000,000 7T °

201596 A 12 B » A2 A]#17 46,000,000 A% 1A%
7 ERRUENB AR MHRE—ID - 5
RER A B RERMEE37 -

B E2015F6 A30H IEFE - AR AR

BEERD

No. of ordinary

BT -

Price per share Aggregate

shares of BRER consideration
Date of repurchase HK$0.01 each Highest Lowest paid
BREE
BH0.01 TH
B A ZER#E 58] ®E ENRNE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
ks B BT T
2 April 2015 20154 A2 H 928,000 1.29 1.25 1,171
8 April 2015 20154 A8 H 72,000 1.24 1.24 89
1,000,000 1,260

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase on 27 April 2015.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any F R

of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

M ER 2015F 4 A 27 AR o

CARARMBARMERE - HEXEO A
RAEM ETHRES
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32.

134

Share Capital (Continued)
Warrants

On 13 November 2013, the Company entered into a warrant placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent
agreed to place up to 96,000,000 warrants conferring rights to
subscribe for 96,000,000 warrant shares at the warrant exercise price
of HK$0.93 per warrant shares (subject to adjustment) to not less
than six warrant placees.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, register holders of 29,000,000
warrants exercised their rights to subscribe for 29,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.93 per share.

As at 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015, 67,000,000 warrants were
outstanding. As a result of the Share Subdivision, based on the
relevant terms of the warrants, the exercise price of the warrants was
adjusted from HK$0.93 per share to HK$0.233 per subdivided share,
where such adjustment was effective from the close of business of
the business day immediately preceding the date on which the Share
Subdivision became effective. In accordance with the adjustment of
the exercise price of the warrants as aforesaid, the number of shares
falling to be issued upon exercise of the warrants changed from
67,000,000 shares to 267,424,892 subdivided shares.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, register holders of 107,768,239
warrants exercised their rights to subscribe for 107,768,239 ordinary
shares in the Company at HK$0.233 per share per share.

As at 30 June 2016, the Company had outstanding 159,656,653
warrants to be exercised at any time on or before 11 December
2016. Exercise in full of such warrants would result in the issue of
approximately 159,656,653 additional ordinary shares.
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33. Deferred Taxation

The followings are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by
the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

33. EEHIA

AEERAFEMBEFERANBEERBEEE
(BE) REZENT

Accelerated

tax

Tax losses  depreciation Total

HIEEE MERERE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BT BT T

At 1 July 2014 201447 A 1H - (28) (28)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A (ZiH) B 11,866 (2,258) 9,608
At 30 June 2015 201546 A30H 11,866 (2,286) 9,580
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (L) st AIBZ (2,455) 753 (1,702)
At 30 June 2016 R2016F6 A30H 9,411 (1,533) 7,878

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$74,548,000 (2015: HK$81,609,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$57,041,000 (2015: HK$71,919,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$17,507,000 (2015: HK$9,690,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$2,758,000 (2015: HK$3,214,000) that will expire in 2020.
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RIBOEMETUE - PENEBAR S 200851 A
1R EE B IREH S M AT E IR B I B AR TR B R
REE I RGAEE T EM B AR RH RS IKEF
G E R ZENR A MWK RELERE
TR R 2 AN 2 BB 42 Tl e P 22 L 0 18 0 iy ) A R °
FRiy ZER A B T B R AT TR R R o

RBEBHR AEEERGARIBREIEBEE
74,548,000 7T (2015 4F = & 81,609,000 7T ) A]
TERSE AR A m T - AEBEE AR F 185K
57,041,000t (20154 : & # 71,919,000 7T ) &
RIEEB IR EE o B 7R Mm@ F it 2 Al 78 8
Mo REBI AR T B 17,507,000 7T (2015
F 1 7% 9,690,000 70) ERIEEF B EE ° K
RREBEBIESNR2020FE R EBEE
2,758,000 7T (20154 : /& #3,214,0007T ) © E
fth [E5 18 7 g PR ER A5 8 o
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34.

136

Share-Based Payment Transactions
Share option scheme

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was approved
and adopted by the sole shareholder on 5 October 2012 for the
primary purpose to grant options to eligible persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the Directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors), employees, advisors and
consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries who the Board of
Directors of the Company considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

The total numbers of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 5 October 2012. Options granted during the life of
the Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their
terms of grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares. Upon acceptance of the option, the Participants
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant. The option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28
days from the date of grant.

As at 30 June 2015, there was no share options granted under the
Scheme by the Company.
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions 3. URHAEBRNARNRS (&)
(Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued) AR RESTE (])
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme for the year HZE2016F6 A30H FFEZTEBETIRERN
ended 30 June 2016 are as follows: BREFEOT
Number of share options*
BREHE
Outstanding Granted  Adjustment Exercised Lapsed [ONTHENLIT)
Category Exercise at during during during during at
of participant  Date of grant  Exercisable period price*  1July 2015 the year the year* theyear  the year** RE{NEWIN
R2015% #2016 £
7R1R 6A30A
S8E%EN RAUAH i ReE* K% FRRY  FR@E FRAE EREN K
Consultants ~ 13July2015 13 January 2016-12 July 2017~ 2.18 - 12,000,000 36,000,000 - (48,000,000)
B 13.7.2015 13.1.2016-12.7.2017
13July 2015 13 July 2015-12 July 2017 2.18 - 28,000,000 84,000,000 - (112,000,000)

13.7.2015 13.7.2015-12.7.2017

- 40,000,000 120,000,000 (160,000,000)

* As a result of the Share Subdivision, based on the relevant terms of the * AR ETIRD IR - RIBZTEINAERIER 171
Scheme, the exercise price and number of shares falling to be issued upon BRERAEE 218 THABEERIFMARN B 0.545
exercise of the share options were adjusted from HK$2.18 per share to T MITEBERERE TEITZRMEE AH
HK$0.545 per subdivided share and 40,000,000 shares to 160,000,000 40,000,000 fi% #% = 160,000,000 B 4BAZ 15 - B 7
subdivided shares, where such adjustments were effective from the date on FAEERMDIFAERE BRBER -
which the Share Subdivision became effective.

o The share options were lapsed during the period between 13 November *x R B R20154 11 A13HE2015411 A18H
2015 and 18 November 2015. HAR R ©

For share options granted during the current year, the Binomial %TEAﬁir?“tHB’JE%Hﬂ% BERAZEAER G

Model had been used to estimate the fair value of the share options. FTHEARER A T - s ERRE N TERFTAD

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of Zﬁz%ﬁ(&fﬁj*“ﬂﬁﬁﬁzﬁ RIS EMAFT ST - B

the share options are based on the Company’s best estimate. The EREEREE TEHEEENTREZESHmMAEMT

value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective A o ZIEA M EZGHABIRAT -

assumptions. The significant inputs into the model are as follows:

Date of grant 13 July 2015 XA 201547 4138
Closing price of share at grant date HK$2.18 REH AR O TE BHE2.187T
Exercise price HK$2.18 IEME BHE2.187T
Expected volatility 64.65% T8 A 08 64.65%
Risk-free rate 0.36% B R A R 0.36%
Expected dividend yield 0% TEEANR Bz & 0%
Included in administrative expenses, the Group recognised the total HZE2016F6 A30H ILFE - AEERITHHA
expense of HK$25,272,000 for the year ended 30 June 2016 (30 X HEREARA TR L EREAENF A%
June 2015: nil) in relation to share options granted by the Company. 7B 25,272,000 T (2015F 6 A30H : #) ©
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35. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee

As at 30 June 2016, the Group leased certain of its office premises
and cinemas under operating lease arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had committed for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

35. REHEHRE

REBEEREBA

MR2016F6 A30H  AEEREBEELHELH
HMEEETHAZMENTMR -

RB|EMR - AEER A BHL S HERIER
THRRREEENKOBHERGT

2016 2015

2016 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Within one year —&FR 66,104 61,027
In the second to fifth year inclusive E-EZFERFN(BREEEME) pLER) 279,280
Over five years AFi% 290,282 360,587

640,276 700,894

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for the Group’s
office premises and cinemas. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to fifteen years (2015: one to fifteen years).

Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the above are
subject to contingent rent payments, which are charged at
progressive rates from 12% to 38% of the excess of the annual gross
box-office takings of the related cinema premise over certain level of
box-office income as determine is the respective lease agreement.
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36. Retirement Benefit Plans

0]

(i)

Plans for Hong Kong employees

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustees. Under the
rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available
to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the
rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which is 5% on the basic
salary of the relevant employee subject to a specific ceiling of
HK$1,500.

Plans for PRC employees

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiary is required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost of HK$1,207,000 (2015: HK$617,000) charged to
profit or loss represents contributions paid or payable to the above
schemes by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016.

0]

(i)
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MEERAEBEEIRKE  E2mX
FEAER] - RIFREEF BRG] - B
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37. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group has the following
acquisition of subsidiaries:

U

(n

140

On 17 September 2014, the Group acquired 80% equity
interest in Skywork Media Limited for a cash consideration of
HK$1. Skywork Media Limited is a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 20 February 2014 and did not
commence business since its incorporation. At the date of
acquisition, the sole asset of Skywork Media Limited
represented an amount due from a shareholder of HK$1.00.

The cash outflow on acquisition of the subsidiary is HK$1.00.

On 12 June 2015, Green Riches, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company completed to acquire 100% interest in Chili
Group from Ms. Wong Kit Fong, the sister of Mr. Wong, the
Chairman and substantial shareholder of the Company, at an
aggregate fair value of consideration of HK$206,000,000
which is satisfied by HK$10,040,000 paid in cash and the
issuance of 46,000,000 new shares of the Company at
HK$4.26 per Consideration share at the date of completion of
the Acquisition. The Acquisition has been accounted for using
the purchase method. Chili Group is principally engaged in the
provision of advertising and marketing services and the printed
and digital media publication and the operation of a private
members’ club.

37. KEHMEBLF

HZE2015F6 A308 IEFE - ANEBWEMHK
BRET

M

R2014F9 A17H - REEWKRE R RIEEE
BIRATFIB0%KE  MeRERBE 1T -
RIBEEBRAF A —HR201492 A20
AEEBEMKIMERAR - 8 H =M
R ARIARFBER - RIKEBBE - X
RIEEFRAGNE—EEREN—AK
HFIEBE1.000T °

WHEZHI B AR MRS R H 2B 1.007T ©

BH2015F6 A12H » ARFAHNEZEHBR
ARV ERAARATEREIERREL
R EZ 55 2 U Chili %2 E100%
Bz RERQFE BB 206,000,000
L WHERERWEEEEA BRI
7515 10,040,000 7T K i B R R B R D 7B
4.26 7T 3£ 1T 46,000,000 A% 74 2 &) # A1) 2
o WHESEEEIRIREEEALR - ChiliseE
FEREREES RIS HEERS AL
ol e BT R B HH AR EETS - WA ERAGFT ©

Consideration transferred EEAE
HK$'000
BT T
Cash Re 10,040
Equity instruments issued BETERTIA 195,960
Cash B& 206,000

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$500,000 have been
excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been recognised
directly to share premium.
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37. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(In

(continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
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1]

37. WIBHIE 2R (&)

R B B R A ER B (&

HK$'000

BT

Property, plant and equipment (note 14) Y B & (R 14) 937
Intangible assets (note 16) mAEE (fE16) 37,500
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H At FEUGRIA 1,370
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 4,045
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FRIA (2,860)
Tax liabilities HIEAE (117)
Amount due to a director JENN—RBEERRIA (6,389)
34,486

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$1,370,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$1,370,000 at the date of acquisition. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows

RUEEEE - 5 REMEWKFENATF
B A8 1,370,000 - PUEBH - 2%
EREE S REMBUIENBENSEE
A1 1,370,000 - AYEHE - TEEA&E
FREME RS RENREGTSEA

not expected to be collected amounted to nil. = e
Gooadwill arising on acquisition IS f P A 7 AR
HK$'000
BT
Consideration transferred giEENAE 206,000
Plus: non-controlling interests (30% in Chili Group) I c SRR AE RS (B Chili S EAY 30% #ERS) 9,570
Less: net assets acquired B B EESE (34,486)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 15) F Y P E e 2 (I 15) 181,084

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Chili Group because the
cost of the combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation the benefit of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of Chili Group. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet
the recognition criteria for identified intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

R B Chili 2 1B T EE £ RO B D A & DR
ANBIEEBOGE - W A ITHR
EERR B35 Chili 5 B 78 B 15 [F e
Wk RRMHERMEET AR
REOF s BRI T EE - AF MW EER
BOFER - DHRZENELTTE A
BHIETLEENTERIRE -

AERWEMEENAREBERTAMNHK -
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37. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

142

(In

(continued)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

37. WIBHIE R (&)

(#&)

BB AT 2 4 B9 B 2 7 1 F RE

HK$'000

BT T

Consideration paid in cash EREENRE 10,040
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired B BRER S RIREEED (4,045)
5,995

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the loss for the year ended 30 June 2015 is
HK$48,000 attributable to Chili Group. Revenue for the year
ended 30 June 2015 includes HK$790,000 attributable to Chili
Group.

Had the acquisition of Chili Group been effected from at the
beginning of the year ended 30 June 2015, the total revenue
of the Group would have been HK$161,581,000 and the loss
for the year ended 30 June 2015 would have been
HK$224,115,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed at the
beginning of the current year, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and loss of the Group
had Chili Group been acquired at the beginning of the current
year, the Directors calculated depreciation and amortisation of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset based on
the recognised amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible asset at the date of the acquisition.
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38. Related Party Disclosures

)

Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following

significant transactions with related parties:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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n x5
FR - ARERMEBT YT UATERR
2

Name of related parties Notes Nature of transaction 2015
RAEE TS B8 ME XZHE 2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

PM Motion Pictures Limited (a) Service income 485 1,425
REEZHRBERAR PR UA
Pegasus Laboratory (International) (b) Film processing services fee

Limited (”Pegasus Laboratory”) 847
REHEN(BIRR) R A A BRIEMAP RIS B

(TREHEND
Pure Project Limited (©) Rental expense 490
Pure Project Limited HEMX
Chili (d) Advertising and promotion services fee 800
Chili EE RIEERBE R
KE R XE (JE ) ()  Management fee

BRABEN(" KGR (JER)") 227
REFH R (L) ERE

BRAR (T REH (LR
MINKE R UL BRAF (f)  Management fee

("TMRE ") 151
MMREZR I ER AT EIEE

(TMKED
BPL (9) Production income -
e SUEIA
Ta Creative House (h) Production services fee -

Ta Creative House

SUERTE
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38. Related Party Disclosures (Continued) 38. EAEK H K EE ()

() Transactions (Continued) n x5(&E)
Notes: BiaE -

The service income was received from PM Motion Pictures Limited for
the Group'’s provision of film distribution services. Mr. Wong, Mr.
Wong Chi Woon Edmond and Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
(collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) all being
the Directors, collectively have controlling interests over this
company.

The film processing services fee was paid to Pegasus Laboratory in
which it is beneficiary owned by a company collectively controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders as at 30 June 2016 and 2015.

The rental expenses was paid to Pure Project Limited for the office
premise leased by the Group. Mr. Wong has controlling interests in
Pure Project Limited.

The advertising and promotion services fee was paid to Chili and for
the period from 1 July 2014 to 12 June 2015 (the date of completion
of acquisition of Chili in which Ms. Wong Kit Fong, the sister of Mr.
Wong, has controlling interests in).

The management fee was paid to & 5 & Bt (4t &) in which Mr.
Wong has controlling interests.

The management fee was paid to #1/{lX 5 in which a member of
the key management of the Group has controlling interests.

The production income was received from the joint venture, BPL.

The production services fee was paid to Ta Creative House in which
Ms. Wong Kit Fong, the sister of Mr. Wong, has controlling interests.
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38. Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(m

(1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Balances

Details of the amounts due to related companies, amount due
from (to) non-controlling interests and amount due to a joint
venture are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position and in notes 29, 30 and 31, respectively.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other key management
personnel of the Group during the year was as follows:

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

(m

(1)

38. BRI E (&)

FEASTRABSE X B ROR - U (AT FF1RAR
BEFIANEN —Ba 2 EEFENFE
DRIBR AR A MR R K HEE29 - 30 &
31

FTEEEASHH

FR EERAEEHEMIZEEAERN
HrEME s T

2016 2015

2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Salaries and other allowances e RHAMER,
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBFIFT B

13,817 8,696
103 109

13,920 8,805

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee of the Company having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

EENHMETEZEEABNHFNEARF
FHNEZBEZREARRETSBEKE

F o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e PR AR MT aE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

39. Statement of Financial Position of the 39. QB B AR 3R
Company
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Assets EE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HENBRRARE 97,196 97,196
Other receivables H b sk IE 145 100
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 203,060 256,965
Bank balances BITHER 177 722
300,578 354,983
Liability 8f&
Other payables HAth ETFRIE 500
Net assets/total assets less current liabilities EEFE HBEERAHAE 300,578 354,483
Capital and reserves EXRkfHE
Share capital (note 32) A& (B 5E32) 6,309 6,040
Share premium and reserves (note) A& A7 345 18 M frE 45 (M 5) 294,269 348,443
300,578 354,483
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

39. Statement of Financial Position of the 39. RKATMBEMRRE (HF)
Company (Continued)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and FEUHIE A TR IB TR - B iR EK(ESE
repayable on demand.

Note: FfEE -
Share
Share option Special Warrants ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R EE BRERR RHRE RRERRE RitER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1]uly 2014 #H201457 818 199,168 - 47,196 710 (14,083) 232,991
Loss for the year and total comprehensive  FREIE R ERNZ HF S A5

expense for the year - - - - (164,478) (164,478)
Issue of new shares (note 32) TR (5 32) 62,500 - - - - 62,500
Cost of issuing new shares BT RA (3,000) - - - - (3,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WK B AR (37) 195,500 - - - - 195,500
Cost of issuing consideration shares BT tf“ﬂx AR (500) - - - - (500)
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants ~— R{TERBREZLHITRG

(note 32) (Hi#E32) 26,895 - - (215) - 26,680
Shares repurchased and cancelled (note 32) B B[R K it #8917 (P 5 32) (1,250 - - - - (1,250
At 30 June 2015 7201556 A30H 479,313 - 47,196 495 (178,561) 348,443
Loss for the year and total comprehensive  FREIE R ERN L HF S A%

expense for the year - - - - (104,286) (104,286)
Recognition of equity-settled share based — FEAME AL E LAR () AERE 2 (37

payment - 25272 - - - 25272
Transfer upon share options lapsed R R LR - (25,272) - - 25,272 -
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants — FAf7{E SRR RE (£ 31T

(note 32) (M3E32) 25,040 - - (200) - 24,840
At 30 June 2016 201656 H30H 504,353 - 47,196 295 (257,575) 294,269
Special reserve represented the capital contribution from Honour BRI EEEERER NN EA N S ARE
Grace which is based on the total equity of Green Riches at the date HEITEE -

of the Reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company 40. XD FMEB A BFEE

a. The Company had the following subsidiaries as a. R20165FK2015F6H30H * &4
at 30 June 2016 and 2015: TEETYMB AR :

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary Attributable Proportion
incorporation/ share capital/ equity of voting
establishment/  registered interest held by power held by
Name of subsidiary operations capital the Company the Company  Principal activities
BRIRAE
EMAL/ LERRE/ RAARE KAARE
WEARER RY/ B  ERER ol e BERMLE TEEE

Green Riches (Note i) BVI US$1 Investment holding

B UED) RERIES 1%7 RERER

Pegasus Motion Pictures Hong Kong HKS1 Film production

Production Limited
AREFHERRR B BT ERHIE

PMPHKL Hong Kong HKS1 Film distribution

AEEZEE B BT EFETHR

Pegasus Motion Pictures BVI US$1 Film distribution and production

Distribution Limited
AEBYETERA ERRLHE 1% EYATmRELE

it)?\?\% (Note ii) The PRC HK$1,500,000 Service provider of the Group for
facilitating the establishment and
expansion of the Group's
business in the PRC

JERRSE (L) el 71,500,000 70 TR R ERASERTE
EBAEERGHER

Star Pictures Entertainment Limited BVI Us$1 Representing the Group in entering
into actors and film directors’
contracts and film distribution

ERREBRAT EERLES 1% REALETUEEREZEE
ANREFETIM

Star Pictures HK Hong Kong HK$10,000 Representing the Group in entering
into actors’ and production
crew's contracts and film
distribution

ERRE(FE) E 10,0007 REARETLRE REEEGORE

R

PMPIL Hong Kong HKS1 Film investment

ARETRE Bk BT EYRE

Cinema City Group Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Cinema operations and
management

EYNEEARAT Bk BT FREERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

40. A& R E 2 RS (F)

(Continued)
a. The Company had the following subsidiaries as a.
at 30 June 2016 and 2015: (Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary Attributable
incorporation/ share capital/ equity
establishment/  registered interest held by
Name of subsidiary operations capital the Company
BEATRAR
HMERL/ LRRRA/ KRAREE
WEARER RY/Eghs  ERER WL IR E
2015
20155
Cinema City (Langham Place) Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100%
Limited
EVH (RS BRAT &R FER£3,000,0007C
Screen Media & Promotion Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100%
PREESEARAT G BEAT
Skywork Media Limited (Note iii) Hong Kong HK$100 80%
RIBEEARAR (W) B 1007
Chili (Note i) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
Chili (P &Eiii) A 10,0007
Powerful Target Investment Group BVI Us$1 100%
Limited (Note i)
REREREARAR (WEii) HERLAS (B
Favourable On Global Investment BVI Us100 70%
Limited (“Favourable On")
(Note iii)
ERERREARAR(RR)) EERLHE 10037t
(Bitsii)
Chili Platinum (Note iii) Hong Kong HK$1 70%
BEAS (W) B BT
HERREYREERR AR The PRC RMB10,000,000 100%
(Note iv)
ERREYRERERAR el ARH10,000,0007T
(MzEIV)
FEREERERRA The PRC RMB5,000,000 100%
(Note iv)
PEZFELERERAR il ARE5,000,00070
(MzEv)
BEXE (Note v) The PRC RMB10,000,000 60%
BE Xt (W) il ARH#10,000,0007C

M 2016 £ 2015F6 A30H ' &=
AEETYMBAT - (&)

Proportion
of voting
power held by
the Company

NGl
BEREMLA
2015
20155

Principal activities

100%

100%

80%

100%

100%

70%

70%

100%

100%

60%

REFRUCIZERBR AR ~ 2015/16 F 3k

Cinema operations

FhEE

Film distribution, advertising and
promotion

ERETHN BERER

Post-production

fEERE

Provision of advertising and
marketing services

RUEERTGRERS

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Provision of printed and digital
media publication business

R DRI R BB AR R E T

Cinema management and operation
in the PRC

ROESERERY R

Film distribution in the PRC

RPERTEY

Cinema operation in the PRC
ReEEEk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e PR AR MT aE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

a. The Company had the following subsidiaries as
at 30 June 2016 and 2015: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Except Green Riches, all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned by
the Company.

(if) It is @ wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

(iii)

These subsidiaries were acquired by the Group on 17 September
2014 and 12 June 2015, respectively. Details are set out in note 37.

(iv)

They were new domestic enterprises established in the PRC during
the year ended 30 June 2015.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of the non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company that has material non-controlling
interests:

Place of
incorporation and
principal place

held by non-controlling

40. A2 BB~ RS (8)

a. M2016%K%201556H308 & &4
AEETYMBAT - (&)

GEX

(i) BRI FTEEMBHBRRHARARRM
A -

(ii) ZARBNPERIMINEBERE -

ZEWRE AR DR R2014F98178 &k

201546 A 12 BEARE B U o FHERHT
737

(iii)

ZENA IR EZE 201546 A30HIEFEE
B T T 2 o

(iv)
RERKFRERERE - SHE QR E
ERREREBHES °

b. BEEARRREBOHZEKE
ARWRE

TREFHEAEAFERERENANRFZE
AN B AR

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights

Loss allocated to Accumulated

Name of subsidiary of business interests non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
MR H K FERERSEN
WELREE TELEY FEREERAZELY IEREFEREZNESR R ERER
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 20154 2016 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT Syl ST EEkEw
Favourable On BVI 30% 11,070 (2,993)
EY HBRENHS

Individual immaterial subsidiary
with non-controlling interests

BEEFRIRESNERFER
=N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

40. A& R E 2 RS (F)

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that b. BEEAHEREZNIEZENES
have material non-controlling interests AENFE ()
(Continued)

ERBRERFERERNAKRENBERQ
ANMBEERBERINWNT - U THBE
P E PSR TR L S B A AR

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that has a material non-controlling interest is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Favourable On BZ
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Current assets MEAE 511 2,121
Current liabilities B A S (11,760) (7,748)
Non-current assets FEREEE 1,273 32,550
(Deficit) equity attributable to owners of the — ZANAFHA AJENL (B4 #E%
Company 18,846
Non-controlling interests eI 8,077
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iR e PR AR MT aE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company 40. RN THE A RFE (&)
(Continued)
b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that b. BEEARFEREZNIZENE

have material non-controlling interests AR (&)
(Continued)

1 July 2015 12 June 2015

to to
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
20155 20154
7H1H 6H12H
£2016 F 20154
6 H30H 6 H30H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue U =5 1,544 1,837
Expenses 53 (38,443) (6,814)
Loss for the year FAEE (36,899) (4,977)
Loss and total comprehensive expense RAREE AELEBER
attributable to owners of the Company 2HMAX 2% (25,829) (3,484)
Loss and total comprehensive expense SRV AE R B IE R
attributable to non-controlling interests ZHEMAX B (11,070) (1,493)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREBEREERAZEE
for the year (36,899) (4,977)
Net cash inflow from operating activities RESEENIR S AR R 770 1,363
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEESH SR F5E (1,039)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEREIRERAFRE 1
Net cash (outflow) inflow we ORt) mAFRE 325
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41. Commitments

At the end of reporting period, the Group had outstanding

commitments as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire BRI AT

For the year ended 30 June 2016 £ = 20164 6 A 30 AL F[Z

i
59d
of

HIR » ANEBE R ARBITAENT

Capital commitments:

Capital expenditure in respect of renovations of
the Lease contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements

BAREE

ERTAMERNERE BB IRKRIEH
BENHEREEARNX

Capital expenditure authorised but not
contracted for:

ERBERITHINEAFRX

— the cinema operation in the PRC

N A

Total capital commitments

BRI

2016 2015
2016 5 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
15,340 -
25,601 43,722
40,941 43,722

Other commitment:

U

On 13 March 2015, PMPHKL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, provided a guarantee (“Guarantee”) in favor of a
landlord as a condition to enable 5 (L, which is owned as
to 60% by 4t =K 55, a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary,
and as to 40% by Lander Investment Limited, an independent
third party, to rent a cinema in Vivo City, located in Shanghai,
the PRC for a lease (the “New Cinema Lease Contract”) of
fifteen years commencing from the date when the landlord
deliver possession of the leased premises to 55 3 {t,, which is
expected to be a date in the third quarter of 2016, provided
that the maximum liability under the Guarantee will not exceed
approximately RMB5.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$7 million).

An indemnity was executed by Lander Investment Limited as
indemnifier in favor of the Group in respect of any damages
incurred by the Group arising from the Guarantee in proportion
to the shareholding of Lander Investment Limited in 55 1t
provided that the maximum liability under the indemnity will
not exceed approximately RMB2.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.9 million), being 40% of the maximum
liability of PMPHKL under the Guarantee.

HAdE

@

R2015F3 138 » KAEEZ2EHER A
AEEEEBUETAIRARME—EE
ROER]D - AEAEBE L (RERE
FEEMBRARUERRER—RBILE=
FNIHKREREEEERARDRES
60% N 40% #E %) RESFE B AL A R Bl £)8
MRS LI E G - HO(THER
PRAEAN]) FHEXETHHEENENEGE
RN FBEX LB (A A2016FF
“FEXB)BI5F AIREERET
BAEISHEBETRBNARESIHEE T
(FRERHEBIEETT) »

MIRREREEEARAR ((ERBER
BN A S B EERAEENOEAIEER
BUAEBREE AN TR EREE
EARATNES X e AL 012 7 8
ERE MERBEREETRAAEES
BB THEABNARE24BET(HERLY
BE29BEL)  RFEZHENER
ETHABEESFENL0% -
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B 5 R AR BT o

AN
N

For the year ended 30 June 2016 E = 201646 A 30 AL F[Z

41. Commitments (Continued)

42.

154

Other commitment: (Continued)

U

(i)

(Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2016, it ® X5 further
acquired the remaining 40% shareholding in 5532 {tfrom
Lander Investment Limited and 55321t became an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The maximum
liability of the Group under the indemnity will not exceed
approximately RMB5.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$7 million).

On 27 June 2016, the Group entered into a provisional tenancy
agreement with an independent third party in leasing a
property restricted for cinema operation in Hong Kong with a
lease term of 15 years.

Event after the Reporting Period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group entered

into the following significant transaction:

On 11 July 2016, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement

with an independent third party to acquire 40% equity interest of a

company engaged in a film production business at a consideration of
HK$20,000,000. The transaction was completed on the same day. As
at the date of this report, the Company is in progress of assessing the
financial impact of the acquisition.
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41.

42,

i ()
HbadE - (8)
ONENC)

HZE2016F6 A30B IEFE - kKGR
TREAEREERERARE— S IWE
B 55 L I BR T 40% AR i B B 55 e Ak A&
AREM—HBREEENBAR - NEE
RBEEREETRRATBETBBOAR
BSoOBEEIL(EERNBETIEET)

(i) M2016F6HA27H  AEBE—ZBIE
=HRIM TREEERE  UEE—FER
TERAREBT L EENYE  HEA15F -

BEHREE

BEHARR  AEECITLTIEARRS

M2016F7R1MB  AEBHEBIE=FF
BRBHRAKE PR EECRIEERHAF
40% B HE - (B AE 20,000,000 7T ° 2 5 A E
HIE « RARE B E - AAF EA T E ISR

R EZ



Financial Results

Financial Summary
B 2

MBERE

For the year ended 30 June

BZ6HA30BLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
20124 20134 2014 20154 2016 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  B¥Tr  B¥Tr BEBTT BEELE
Revenue g 137,186 192,645 134,788 155,240 446,381
Cost of sales HEMA (81,048)  (127,362) (75,064)  (108,419) EMPLL:R1P))
Gross profit EF 56,138 65,283 59,724 46,821 186,829
Other income Habg A 2,587 974 3,532 2,869 4,738
Selling and distribution expenses HE REBITHX (16,192) (21,794) (15,033) (84,456) IELYX:Y1)]
Administrative expenses THRX (7,971)  (16,976)  (22,112)  (33,369) IENCYAIL)
Net foreign exchange loss B 5 B 1RF AR - - - (110) (6,779)
Impairment loss on goodwill EER(EEE - - - (138,000) (43,084)
Impairment loss on intangible asset 2 & EREE 1B - - - - (20,514)
Impairment loss on other receivables H fib & e BE FURE &5 18 - - - - (2,011)
Impairment loss on prepayment for 1% & B8 Bl & /ETE T 3018
investment in TV series production — HJE{E &8 - - - (15,750) -
Finance costs BhE KA (559) (53) (103) (78) (170)
Other expenses HAbkx (7,497) (3,806) - - =
Share of results of an associate JEMR—RIEE A RIEE - - 4,661 (4,548) (234)
Share of results of a joint venture {5 — & S D ELE - - - - (2,090)
Profit (loss) before tax BB ADR N (E1E) 26,506 23,628 30,669  (226,621) (73,809)
Income tax (expense) credit FisE (A e (5,525) (4,484) (4,283) 9,637 (10,343)
Profit (loss) for the year FrEF (E1E) 20,981 19,144 26,386  (216,984) (84,152)
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMmE2EFH) WA
income for the year
Items that may be reclassified PERH S EN SR
subsequently to profit or loss mIEH
Share of exchange difference of i il /N
an associate MEHZERR - - (23) 2
Share of exchange difference of EE—fMaErs
a joint venture b N, =58 - — _ _
Exchange difference on translating /B8N0 E 7 (& 5 =48
foreign operation - - - -
Total comprehensive income FREEMBA (X)) B8
(expense) for the year 20,981 19,144 26,363 (216,982)
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Financial Summary
B RE

For the year ended 30 June

HBZ6H30RLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015
20124 20134 20144 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETITT BT BBt BETT
Profit (loss) for the year attributable T 7IJ A + fE15 5 A% 7
to: (B#E)
Owners of the Company PN/NCIEZZ DN 20,981 19,144 26,363  (215,258)
Non-controlling interests FEFE A - - - (1,726)
20,981 19,144 26,363 (216,984)
Assets and Liabilities BEENGE
At 30 June
MR6H30H
2012 2013 2014 2015
2012 4F 20134 20144 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETITT BT ABTr  BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREHE
Total assets BERE 193,487 221,761 311,864 584,734
Total liabilities BB (152,396) (27,841) (20,588)  (216,892)
41,091 193,920 291,276 367,842
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIHEB ANELER
the Company 41,091 193,920 291,276 357,190
Non-controlling interests FEIT AR RE S - - - 10,652
41,091 193,920 291,276 367,842
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2016

2016 FF
HK$'000
BT T

(72,591)
(11,561)

(84,152)

2016

2016 &
HK$'000
BT T

458,804

(126,494)

332,310

334,027
(1,717)

332,310
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